
Damian Allen
Chief Executive
___________________________________________________________________
Issued on:  Wednesday 8 January 2020

Governance Officer for this Meeting: Jonathan Goodrum, Senior 
Governance Officer
Tel. 01302 736709

Doncaster Metropolitan Borough Council
www.doncaster.gov.uk

Agenda
___________________________________________________________________

To all Members of the

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
Notice is given that a Meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board is to be held 
as follows:

 
Venue    Room 007a and b - Civic Office, Waterdale, Doncaster, DN1 3BU

Date:      Thursday, 16th January, 2020

Time:     9.00 a.m.

PLEASE NOTE START TIME FOR THIS MEETING
___________________________________________________________________

Items for consideration: Time/
Lead

1.  Welcome, introductions and apologies for absence. 2 mins
(Chair)

2.  Chair's Announcements. 5 mins
(Chair)

3.  To consider the extent, if any, to which the public and press are to be 
excluded from the meeting.  

1 min
(Chair)

4.  Public questions.

(A period not exceeding 15 minutes for questions from members of the 
public.)

15 mins
(Chair)

Public Document Pack



5.  Declarations of Interest, if any.  1 min
(Chair)

6.  Minutes of the Meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board held 
on 7th November 2019. 
(Attached – pages 1 – 8)

3 mins
(Chair)

7.  Doncaster Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2018/19.  
(Video Presentation/Paper attached – pages 9 – 12)

30 mins
(Griff Jones and 
Shabnum Amin)

8.  Report from Health and Wellbeing Board Steering Group and 
Forward Plan.
(Paper attached – pages 13 – 24)

15 mins
(Dr Rupert Suckling)

9.  Update on Get Doncaster Moving - A Whole Systems Approach 
to Addressing Inactivity.
(Presentation/Paper attached – pages 25 – 54)

30 mins
(Clare Henry)

10.  Well Doncaster Update.
(Presentation/Paper attached – pages 55 – 66)

30 mins
(Vanessa Powell-

Hoyland and Emma 
Nicholas-Hernandez)

11.  Children and Young People's Plan Impact Report.
(Paper attached – pages 67 – 96)

30 mins
(Dawn Hall/

Deborah Burton)

Date/time of next meeting: 

Thursday, 12 March 2020 at 9.00 a.m. in Room 007a and b - Civic Office, 
Waterdale, Doncaster, DN1 3BU.



Members of the Health and Wellbeing Board

Chair – Councillor Rachael Blake – Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care 
Vice-Chair – Dr David Crichton, Chair of Doncaster Clinical Commissioning Group

Councillor Nigel Ball Portfolio Holder for Public Health, Leisure and Culture
Councillor Nuala Fennelly Portfolio Holder for Children, Young People and Schools
Councillor Cynthia Ransome DMBC Conservative Group Representative
Dr. Rupert Suckling Director of Public Health, Doncaster Council
Kathryn Singh Chief Executive of Rotherham, Doncaster and South 

Humber NHS Foundation Trust (RDaSH)
Steve Shore Chair of Healthwatch Doncaster 
Karen Curran Head of Co-Commissioning NHS England (Yorkshire and 

Humber)
Richard Parker Chief Executive of Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching 

Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
Phil Holmes Director of Adults, Health and Well Being, Doncaster 

Council
Riana Nelson Director of Learning, Opportunities and Skills, Doncaster 

Council
Jackie Pederson Chief Officer, Doncaster Clinical Commissioning Group
Chief Superintendent 
Shaun Morley

District Commander for Doncaster, South Yorkshire Police

Paul Tanney Chief Executive, St. Leger Homes of Doncaster
Shayne Tottie District Manager, South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue
Alan Adams Interim Chief Executive of Doncaster Children’s Services 

Trust
Peter Dale Director of Regeneration and Environment, Doncaster 

Council
Laura Sherburn Chief Executive, Primary Care Doncaster
Lucy Robertshaw Assistant Director darts, Doncaster Community Arts 

(Health and Social Care Forum representative)



This page is intentionally left blank



DONCASTER METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

 HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

THURSDAY, 7TH NOVEMBER, 2019 
 
A  MEETING of the HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD was held at the 007A AND 
B, CIVIC OFFICE on THURSDAY, 7TH NOVEMBER, 2019, at 9.00 am. 
 
PRESENT:  

Chair - Councillor Rachael Blake 

Vice-Chair - Dr David Crichton 

 

Dr Rupert Suckling   Director of Public Health, Doncaster Council 
Steve Shore    Chair of Healthwatch Doncaster 
Alan Adams    Interim Chief Executive, DCST    
Richard Parker   Chief Executive of Doncaster & Bassetlaw Teaching 
     Hospitals Foundation Trust 
Phil Holmes    Director of Adults, Health and Wellbeing (DASS), 
     Doncaster Council 
Lee Golze    Head of Business Transformation and Strategic 
     Commissioning, LOCYP, Doncaster Council,  
     substituting for Riana Nelson, Director of Learning, 
     Opportunities & Skills 
Paul Tanney    Chief Executive, St Leger Homes of Doncaster 
Lucy Robertshaw   Assistant Director, DARTS 
Chief Inspector Jayne Forrest South Yorkshire Police, substituting for Chief  
     Superintendent Shaun Morley 
Tony Holmes    Principal Social Worker, DCST 
 
 

 
24 WELCOME, INTRODUCTIONS AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
The Chair welcomed all to the meeting, particularly to those new members of the 
Board attending their first meeting. The Board also welcomed Ellie Holding from the 
University of Sheffield who was observing the meeting as part of her research for a 
study, which is examining the current national and local policy context for reducing 
health inequalities among children and young people. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Nigel Ball, Nuala Fennelly, 
Cynthia Ransome and Riana Nelson, Jackie Pederson, Karen Curran, Peter Dale, 
Kathryn Singh, Shaun Morley, Laura Sherburn and Shane Tottie 
 

25 CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS.  
 
The Chair announced that since the last, there had been some changes in the Board’s 
membership, so felt it appropriate to place on formal record the Board’s thanks and 
best wishes to Paul Moffat (DCST) and Steve Helps (SYFR) who had both now 
stepped down from the Board. 
 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 6



 

26 PUBLIC QUESTIONS.  
 
Mr Doug Wright expressed concern with regard the significant efficiency savings 
having to be made with regard to the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Sustainability 
and Transformation Plan (STP).  
 
Mr Wright stated there were a number of Boards and Committees within the Council, 
such as HWB, Adults, Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel and sought clarity on 
who makes decisions in relation to South Yorkshire Bassetlaw Integrated Care 
system. 
 
In reply, the Vice-Chair, Dr David Crichton notified Mr Wright that discussions would 
be taking place on the NHS Finances at the Commissioners meeting this afternoon. 
He also highlighted that Public Health were funded differently to the Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG). 
 
Richard Parker, Chief Executive of Doncaster & Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals 
Foundation Trust advised Mr Wright and the Board that even with or without the 
Integrated Care System, the numbers quoted would remain. There were challenges 
with the system architecture and needed to work together and find the best way in 
which to breach the deficit. 
 
In relation to Mr Wright’s second point, the Chair, Councillor Rachael Blake stated that 
the Council had a number of Boards/Committees where Health issues were 
considered. However, suggested that if he had concerns he should initially bring them 
to the attention of the Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Panel at 
their Public meetings. She also stated that Key Decisions with regard to health matters 
would be considered at Cabinet meetings, where members of the public can attend 
and ask questions or make statements. 
 

27 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST, IF ANY.  
 
There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting. 
 

28 MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD HELD 
ON 5TH SEPTEMBER 2019.  
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 5th September, 2019 be 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 

 
29 REPORT FROM HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD STEERING GROUP AND 

FORWARD PLAN  
 
The Board considered a report, which provided an update on the work of the HWB 
Steering Group to deliver the Board’s work programme and, also provided a draft 
Forward Plan for future Board meetings, as set out in Appendix A to the report. 
 
In particular, the report included updates for the Board on: 

 Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Panel – Recent Reviews; 

 Health Inequalities; 

 Board Effectiveness; 

 Forward Plan for the Board; 

Page 2



 

 Minutes of SY&B Shadow Integrated Care System Collaborative Partnership 
Board held on 12th July, 2019; and 

 Minutes of Joint Commissioning Management Board held on 19th September 
2019 

 
Discussion took place in relation to the content of the workshop being held on the 5th 
December, 2019. It was advised, that the session would provide members with the 
opportunity to assess and gather a further understanding of the Boards role and to 
have further conversations around the outcomes framework and how partners work 
together. It was also noted, that the workshop would be welcomed as it provides for 
public accountability and focus can be given to the concerns raised by local people.  
 

RESOLVED: 
 

(1) that the update from the HWB Steering Group be received and 
 noted; 

 
(2) that the proposed Forward Plan, as detailed in Appendix A to the report, 
 be agreed. 

 
30 DONCASTER SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN PARTNERSHIP ANNUAL REPORT 

2018-19  
 
The Board received a report, which provided an overview on what had been done by 
the safeguarding partners for Doncaster to keep children safe from abuse and neglect, 
through delivering the requirements of the Government’s statutory Working Together 
to Safeguard Children, 2018. 
 
The new safeguarding partnership arrangements build on and replace those of the 
Doncaster Safeguarding Children Board.  
 
The report acknowledged the dedication and hard work of all those involved in 
keeping children in Doncaster safe since local safeguarding children boards were 
established in 2006. Details of what the local safeguarding arrangements were and 
the progress made against them were presented  
to the Board.  
 
It was advised that there had been a change in the structure of the report. Partner 
agencies had not been invited to provide a submission, which had reduced the once 
lengthy reports and had also avoided duplication particularly in relation to Section 11 
arrangements. It was reported that the quality of data being gathered was much better 
as well as a greater interrogation of the data. Communication had also been improved 
via the new website, which had new functionalities. The new website will keep key 
partners more engaged. The practitioner forum had also been strengthened with the 
invitation being circulated to senior officers and conferences remain at a high 
attendance level.  
 
The Board were also advised that a Children’s Partnership had also been identified to 
ensure that young people’s voices were heard. It was reported that a number of issues 
had been identified with regard to exploitation and discussion had taken place on this. 
This had been recognised, as a key area to develop resources.   
 

Page 3



 

With regard to Children in Care (CIC), the Board were, advised that nationally figures 
had risen. However there were early help initiatives and services available and 
through the prevention work this had assisted and will continue to impact on reducing 
the numbers of CIC.  
 
Dr Rupert Sucking informed the Board that in relation to review on the Child Deaths, it 
had been, recommended that governance arrangements were being, reviewed for 
Doncaster CDOP with the aim of transferring responsibility over to the Health and Well 
Being Board via the Children and Young People’s Partnership. 
 
The Board were interested in how outside partners such as the police felt on how 
effective services were on issues such as poverty and child exploitation. Chief 
Inspector Jayne Forrest whilst being careful not to delve too deeply into detail 
regarding staff the message remained the same, if a staff member feels that there is a 
cause for concern, then, they should issue a referral. She stated that Children Criminal 
Exploitation was prevalent within the borough with a high number of children being, 
groomed for criminality. However, she wished to state that the service were ahead of 
the game from a strategic view and there were no concerns that Doncaster were 
behind the game. 
 
Discussion took place on the subject of domestic abuse and it remaining a significant 
issue of concern for interventions at all levels. The DCST had now recruited a team of 
Domestic Abuse Navigators (DANs) to tackle cases involving domestic abuse, who 
apply a whole family approach, working with victims, perpetrators and children. 
Evidence based therapeutic techniques had been introduced and these have been 
extremely effective resulting in no families being re-referred after working with them. 
 
The Chair sought clarity on whether the Board could be doing more to support. It was, 
noted that there were frustrations particularly with regard to suitable housing being 
available. It was, also noted, that, austerity had played a part in those frustrations and 
had had a significant impact on meeting the needs of children, which could be 
something for the Board to consider. Paul Tanney, Chief Executive St Leger Homes 
mentioned that St Leger Homes, had been removed from the membership for the 
Safeguarding Board and he felt that this had been a mistake, this was now been 
rectified and the service now attend the Board.  
 
The Vice-Chair, Dr David Crichton welcomed the report. However stated that with 
regard to crime and the reports of children being drawn into crime from within 
Doncaster, he felt that he had not got a sense of this in Doncaster. In response, it was 
reported that there had always been a risk but with regard to County Lines, this had 
not been a particular issue at the moment within the borough. It was stated that the 
service do have the intelligence and a good handle on what the situation was but there 
was no room for complacency. Members were, advised, that the Child Criminal 
Exploitation Board was an extremely active meeting and it was recognised, that the 
Trust were leaps and bounds ahead of where there were with regard to this matter. It 
was, suggested that it would be useful for the data to show geographical variations. 
 
Clarification and assurance was, sought on the timeliness of interventions. It was, 
advised that, there was a contractual indicator for time taken for interventions and 
timeliness could be lifted from that information. However, Members were, given 
assurance that time taken for interventions was above target. 
 

Page 4



 

In response to a question regarding the third sector and how the service engage with 
them, the Board were advised of a number of mechanisms in which this was carried 
out, such as the Peoples Forum, Practitioner Forum, Annual Conference and the use 
of the new website. Work was also been undertaken to improve the confidence that 
the voice of the children was being heard. 
 

RESOLVED the Doncaster Safeguarding Children Partnership Annual Report, 
be noted. 

 
31 DONCASTER PLACE PLAN REFRESH  

 
Dr Rupert Suckling gave the Board a presentation providing an update in the 
Doncaster Place Plan refresh.  
 
In 2016, the Doncaster health and social care community published its first Place 
Plan, setting out the ambitions of the partnership over the next 5 years to 2022. It was 
the beginning of the journey and much had happened since then. Plans need to flex 
and change as the Council learn more together and understand the challenges faced 
as a place and the opportunities that brings. The refresh of the Place Plan therefore 
builds on the original and takes forward the original ambitions. 
 
The Board were advised that a new four layer model had been developed and the 
Doncaster Integrated Care Partnership understands that to start well, age well and 
indeed for all of us to live well, all four layers of the new model need to be connected 
and operate together; with as much as possible delivered in local neighbourhoods. 
 
It was reported that over the last 18 months, a series of communications and 
engagement activities have and continue to take place to enable co-production, 
development and evaluation of health and care services in Doncaster. 
 
Discussion took place on the 3 new areas of opportunity. It was reported that the 
Integrated Care Partnership had established a Strategic Workforce and Education 
Committee (SWEC) to lead on the planning and development of the collective 
workforce, ensuring that there is capacity and capability to deliver more care out of 
hospital and adopt new care models focused on early help, prevention, anticipatory 
care and whole family, strength-based, person-centred approach. 
 

Members considered the impact of the digital strategy and the Council vision for digital 
services to empower Doncaster people to maximise their own health and wellbeing 
and to enable Council teams to deliver high quality integrated care. It was suggested, 
that from a business intelligence view, it would be beneficial for John Briggs to share 
network profiles with the Board and bring the information to the workshop on 5th 
December.  
 
It was noted that if there were concerns regarding the Integrated Care System, the 
Doncaster Place Plan was the tool to counter balance that and will also provide the 
public accountability. It was asked whether the Board could decide a clear connection 
between them. Members were advised that this would be picked up within the 
outcomes framework report. However, it was noted that, there would be outcomes that 
the place plan should be addressing. It was advised that whilst there were not many 
targets identified within the plan, the Council and its partners were moving in the right 
direction. 
 

Page 5



 

The Chair asked members their views on how residents experience pathology. It was 
advised that it takes longer to receive test results, which has a knock on effect on 
commencing any treatment that is required. Members were advised that this was a 
significant challenge for the place plan and it was acknowledged that there was a 
need to prioritise work. It was noted that within nursing, the vacancy rate was 5%, 
which was considered as performing reasonably well. However, there were areas of 
specialism where there were particular challenges.  
 
The Board noted that it was important for partners to know what the place plan means 
to them and be able to communicate it in a simple way. It was, advised that there was 
a significant amount of work being carried out on localities and demand management 
and it was suggested that discussions continue at the workshop on the 5th December. 
 
 RESOLVED that the Board noted the Place Plan refresh and supported the 
 Direction of Travel 
 
 

32 SOUTH YORKSHIRE & BASSETLAW INTEGRATED CARE SYSTEM RESPONSE 
TO NHS LONG TERM PLAN  
 
Dr Rupert Suckling introduced a report providing an update on progress being made in 
developing the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw ICS Strategic Plan response to the 
Long Term Plan. A copy of the 1st draft of the Strategic Plan 2019-2024 was included 
in the agenda. 
 
The Plan includes key drivers for the strategic narrative, including the need to reduce 
health inequalities and unwarranted variation, improve population health and 
outcomes, access, quality of care and patient experience and how strategically we flex 
resources across the balance of health and care to best meet the needs of all of local 
populations. 
 
The 2019 Plan recommits to the ambition for everyone in South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw to have a great start in life, supporting them to be healthy and live longer 
while aiming to be the best delivery and transformation system in the country. 
 
The Vice-Chair, Dr David Crichton stated that from reading the plan, it had been 
carefully produced using the language used in Doncaster and he recognised the 5 
place partnership described with the plan. It was noted that the final sign off of the 
document would be on the 15th November 2019. He stated that with the Cancer 
Alliance it was important for each individual body to play its part, cancer cannot be 
tackled alone in Doncaster. With regard to pathology, he commented that solutions 
were much easier to find to enable improved patient outcomes. 
 
A suggestion was raised for future reports that acronyms’ be put in full to ensure the 
reader understands the meaning. 
 

RESOLVED that the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw ICS draft response to the 
Long Term Plan be, noted, and support be, given, to the direction of travel. 

 
 
 
 

Page 6



 

33 HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD OUTCOMES FRAMEWORK UPDATE - 
NOVEMBER 2019  
 
The received a report and presentation, introduced by Laurie Mott, Senior Strategy & 
Performance Manager which provided an update on the outcomes framework. The 
report allowed the Board to drive delivery and be sighted on key outcomes and 
indicators. The indicators link to the outcomes identified as part pf the plan for the 
Borough – Doncaster Growing Together (DGT) 
 
The report provided a view of new information available since the last board update in 
November 2018, and also, presented further detail on specific sections of the 
framework. 
 
The updated indicators information was provided in Appendix A to the report together 
with a summary of the current local policy context to show the Councils response to 
the new trends. This was included to support the forward planning process for the 
Board. It was noted, that those areas with deteriorating performance and inadequate 
policy responses were areas that the Board may wish to consider in more detail in the 
future. 
 
Discussion took place on the following Indicators and Outcomes:- 
 

 Healthy Life Expectancy – in both men and women it had improved over the 
last 5 years. In men, it is no longer significantly worse than the England 
average. However, it remains significantly worse for women than the England 
average. It was reported that on the whole, Doncaster people will live longer. 

 

 People using Adult Social Care Services – Members were advised that there 
had been a significant drop, which was an area that requires improvement and 
perhaps learning from other authorities/organisations on best practice. It was, 
noted, that IPSOS Murray had conducted a survey, which stated that less than 
50% of service users used the internet. For future reporting, a figure alongside 
the percentage would be useful. Paul Tanney, Chief Executive St Leger Homes 
commented that there was evidence that sometimes some of the aging tenants 
just require somebody to talk too. 
 

 Children in low income households – Members were advised that following the 
index published 3 weeks ago which showed that 22.7% of 0-15 year olds in 
Doncaster were living in a low income household. Doncaster was the 37th most 
deprived area in England with the most affected areas being in the west of the 
borough. The Chair asked that the Board be supplied, with the figures per ward. 
 

 Childhood Obesity – It was advised that there had been a sharp rise of 
childhood obesity in reception age, which showed significantly higher than the 
national rate 
 

 Children in Care – Whilst the report showed the number increasing since 2014 
and it remained significantly higher than the national rate. However, it was 
reported that this may be changing the curve. In any statistical group, if a 
number was poor, it can change the picture significantly. 
 

 Lifestyle factors – As the report indicates, smoking and alcohol remains 
significantly high. However, it was noted that with regard to smoking, the gap 

Page 7



 

was narrowing. It was advised that the service were good at getting people to 
quit but find it difficult to identify and stop new smokers.  
 

 Ageing well – Admissions for falls have gone up and Flu vaccinations have 
improved in Doncaster to 74%. This remains below the national target albeit by 
1%. Initiatives were in place in relation to the prevention of falls. 
 

 In relation to cancer, it was advised that the service were confident in improving 
early diagnosis. However, there were more people with cancer. It was noted 
that there were a number of initiatives in place. 
 

Discussion took place on whether the Board should focus on addressing two or three 
outcomes, considering what was achievable and realistic. It was noted that adding 
value on two or more outcomes creates good typography. However, it would be 
beneficial also to assess locality variations whilst being consistent with the Place Plan. 
It was suggested that by looking at peer groups, there may be something to learn. It 
was reported that there needed to be some dialogue and thinking around how the 
Board contributes towards the outcomes and to be prepared to shift resources around 
in order to deal with some of the bigger issues being faced. 
 
 RESOLVED that the Board:- 
 

(1)  noted and commented on the updated information contained 
 within the Health and Wellbeing Board Outcomes Framework 
 particularly the Well Being and Prevention areas; and 
 

(2)  consider focussing on two or three specific areas and build on 
 using  locality data. Further discussion on this take place at the 
 Workshop – Development session on the 5th December, 2019. 

 
 
CHAIR:                                                       DATE:                       

Page 8



 

 
 
 
 
Doncaster  
Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
Date:  16 January 2020 
 

Subject: Doncaster Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2018/19 

Presented by: Shabnum Amin (Safeguarding Adults Board Manager) and Griff Jones (Head 
of Service Safeguarding and Mental Health) 

Purpose of bringing this report to the Board 

Decision N 

Recommendation to Full Council N 

Endorsement N 

Information Y 

 

Implications Applicable Yes/No 

DHWB Strategy Areas of Focus Substance Misuse (Drugs and Alcohol) Y 

Mental Health  Y 

Dementia Y 

Obesity Y 

Children and Families  Y 

Joint Strategic Needs Assessment Y 

Finance 
N 

Legal 
 

Y 

Equalities 
 

Y 

Other Implications (please list) 
N 

 

How will this contribute to improving health and wellbeing in Doncaster? 

The Doncaster Safeguarding Adults Board (DSAB) is established in line with duties set out in 

the Care Act 2014 as the mechanism for agreeing how Partner Agencies within Doncaster 

collaborate to protect adults at risk, prevent neglect and abuse and promote the wellbeing of 

adults in its area.   

Doncaster Safeguarding Adults Board has created an annual report video detailing what it 
has done during the year to achieve its strategic objectives and how its partners safeguard 
adults at risk.  

 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 7



 
 
 

Recommendation 

The Board is asked to note the multi-agency activities undertaken during 2018-19 by the 
Doncaster Safeguarding Adults Board to safeguard adults at risk and prevent abuse from 
occurring wherever possible. 
  
 

Page 10



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Summary from Dr John Woodhouse (independent Chair) 

For the third year as Independent Chair of the Doncaster Safeguarding Adults Board I am delighted to introduce our Executive Summary and Annual Report Video. We 

are trying a new format to present the work of the Safeguarding Adults Board, which is largely based on a video. The reason is to see if we can make our report more 

accessible and meaningful to a wider audience. A link to the video can be found here (https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=JP0pXawwtHw&feature=youtu.be). The 

safeguarding partners and I work all the time to see if we can do things better. Constantly trying to improve is essential if we are going to address the complex 

safeguarding problems that some Doncaster residents face. 

 

Following the Introduction of new statutory guidance Working Together to Safeguard Children 2018 my role now includes being Independent Convenor for Doncaster 

Safeguarding Children Partnership. These new arrangements have meant closer and wider partnerships across adults and children services. The Doncaster 

Safeguarding Children and Adult Partnership was formed to allow agencies to hear of developments of the work of the Boards and allow a closer link. This report later 

details the first event that has taken place. 

I am pleased to report that we have largely met our objectives for this year. Though there has been an increase in the number of referrals received, through the 

development of an in-depth dashboard through Power Bi (a computerised recording and analysis system) we are able to understand better the types referrals received 

and how effectively we are responding. The dashboard is a notable achievement for the DSAB partners. We are rather proud that there is regional recognition of its 

quality and information. 

“Safeguarding Adults is - Agencies working together to 

keep adults at risk of abuse safe in Doncaster” 

Adults at risk can be vulnerable to the following types 

of abuse: 

 

 

The Care Act 2014 provided us with legislation to support adults at risk to live free from abuse and harm and 

outlines what should happen if someone is experiencing or is at risk of abuse or neglect. 

 

The Safeguarding Adults Board is a statutory Board which means that by law each local authority should have 

one.  

The Doncaster Safeguarding Adults Board and Doncaster Children’s Board are committed to partnership 

working. The development of new arrangements have brought the Board Partners together with joint Board 

Meetings allowing the sharing of joint functions. Agencies including the Local Authority, NHS, Police, St Leger 

Housing and Healthwatch meet on a quarterly basis to work together to keep adults safe in Doncaster. 

 
 There are now new governance arrangements in place with the core statutory partners (Doncaster 

Council, Doncaster Children’s Trust, Doncaster Clinical Commissioning Group, South Yorkshire Police) 

part of the Chief Officers Safeguarding Operations Partnership (COSOP). 

Physical abuse Emotional or 

psychological abuse 

Neglect 

 

Financial or Sexual 

Exploitation or abuse 

Organisational abuse Modern slavery 

 
Self-Neglect 

 

Discrimination 

 
Domestic Abuse 

 

Sexual Abuse 

 

P
age 11

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=JP0pXawwtHw&feature=youtu.be


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Our Priorities 

Priority 2 

Lead and shape 

safeguarding practice 

Priority 1 

Assure Effectiveness and 

impact of Safeguarding 

arrangements 

Priority 3 

Ability to respond to 

current and emerging 

issues 

Priority 4 

Collaborate, trust and 

build partnerships 

There are three subgroups of the DSAB that oversee the priorities. These are: 

 Quality and Performance – meets on a quarterly basis to analyse multi-agency safeguarding adult’s 

performance. This year there has been a focus on the development of the Performance Framework. The 

dashboard developed in Power Bi has offered an in-depth analysis of performance across the 6 key 

principles of safeguarding. It has been recognised as one of the top 4 effective Dashboards in the region. 

 

 Review and Learning – Safeguarding Adults Reviews requests received and those undertaken. The 

subgroup has the responsibility to commission suitable authors and ensure a timely response to requests. A 

Learning and improvement cycle is in place and activity has increased in Reviews undertaken (1 in 2017/18, 

1 in 2018/19) through a robust procedure for conducting Safeguarding Adult Reviews. 

 

 Keeping Safe Subgroup – joint membership across children and adults. The subgroup has looked at 

including widening the group to include members of the Keeping Safe Forum and to hold it as a meeting for 

members of the public to attend. The subgroup is developing a joint Keeping Safe campaign for both adult 

and children service and will look at a joint leaflet and Communication and Engagement Strategy. The 

subgroup also reviews and discusses workforce development and analysis of training performance and 

needs. 

 

How have we performed: 

 290+ S42 Enquiries Undertaken 

 69% feel safer due to safeguarding intervention. 

 50% oF 2146 cases reported outcomes 

 48% of 2100 reported feeling safer 

 60% of concerns within own home 

Keeping Safe Forum: 

The Forum has existed for 5 years and has gone from 

strength to strength. Bi-monthly meetings are held at 

the Deaf Community college. A wide range of groups 

and people attend. The Forum has information form a 

range of services such as Safeguarding Awareness 

training, Engaged with Officers from South Yorkshire 

Police and South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Service 

to provide information on key messages around 

Keeping Safe in Doncaster, examples have included 

information on scam awareness and fire safety in 

relation to hoarding and self-neglect. 

Developed partnerships with colleagues in the Public 

Health team to share messages and information on 

public health campaigns with members of the 

community including the Winter Warmth Campaign 

where over 450 people were engaged and informed. 

Safeguarding Week 9 – 13th July 2018 

To launch the South Yorkshire Safeguarding week the Safeguarding Awards took place on 9th July. The event 

celebrated how children and adults had supported people in their communities, schools or families to keep safe. 

We heard from children as young as 6 who saved pocket money to support a local charity helping residents. A 

number of schools also received awards for their contribution to tackle bullying. Among the adults, awards were 

given to members of the Keeping Safe Forum, Jodie Keegans (Domestic Abuse Survivor) and poet JB 

Barrington who has worked with Public Health to produce a film about Suicide Prevention.  

 
Keeping Safe Event: 

Approximately 122 people attended the event with the majority (70%) from people in the community or who use 

services in Doncaster. Young people attend the event mainly from Doncaster College. 

The aim of the event was to allow engagement and networking for people. These were many activities on tables 

for people to take part in throughout the day. Some geared to learning about safeguarding and others for fun such 

as the anagram quiz sheets with the chance to win a hamper put together by Healthwatch. 

This was an opportunity to hear about the work of the Keeping Safe Forum over the year and through a short film 

showcase its achievements. The Forum membership has grown with many groups wishing to be involved and 

seeing the Forum as a platform to be involved in safeguarding. 

The highlight of the event was a performance from Lost Voice Guy, Lee Ridley (winner of Britain’s Got 

Talent 2018). Lee highlighted the need for people with care and support needs to be vocal and championed 

the work done in Doncaster. Lee’s comments can be found on the annual report video.  

P
age 12



 

 
 
 
 
Doncaster  
Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
Date:  16 January 2020 
 

Subject: Report of the Health and Wellbeing Board Steering Group and Forward plan 

Presented by: Dr Rupert Suckling, Director of Public Health, Doncaster Council 

Purpose of bringing this report to the Board 

Decision  

Recommendation to Full Council  

Endorsement  

Information X 

 

Implications Applicable Yes/No 

DHW Strategy Areas of Focus Substance Misuse (Drugs and Alcohol) X 

Mental Health  X 

Dementia X 

Obesity X 

Children and Families  X 

Joint Strategic Needs Assessment X 

Finance 
 

Legal 
 

 

Equalities 
 

X 

Other Implications (please list) 
 

 

How will this contribute to improving health and wellbeing in Doncaster? 

This report provides an update on the Ageing Well workshop in October, Board effectiveness and an 
Expression of Interest to the ‘Shaping places for healthier lives’ programme. There have been no 
meetings of the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw, Shadow Integrated Care System Collaborative 
Partnership Board since the Health and Wellbeing Board’s last meeting and no meetings of the 
Doncaster Joint Commissioning Management Board.  It also provides a forward plan for the Board. 

 

Recommendations 

 
The Board is asked to NOTE the report, DISCUSS and AGREE the forward plan. 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



 
www.doncaster.gov.uk 

    Agenda Item No. 8 
          16 January 2020 
 

 
To the Chair and Members of the HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD  

 
REPORT FROM THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD STEERING GROUP 
AND FORWARD PLAN 
 

Relevant Cabinet 
Member(s) 

Wards Affected Key Decision 

Cllr Rachel Blake 
 

All No 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to provide an update to the members of the 

Health and Wellbeing Board on the work of the Steering Group to deliver the 
Board’s work programme and also provides a draft forward plan for future 
Board meetings. 

 
EXEMPT REPORT 
 
2. N/A  

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3. That the Board RECEIVES the update from the Steering Group, and 

CONSIDERS and AGREES the proposed forward plan at Appendix A. 
 
WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR THE CITIZENS OF DONCASTER? 
 
4. The work programme of the Health and Wellbeing Board has a significant 

impact on the health and wellbeing of the Doncaster population through the 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy, the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment, 
system management and any decisions that are made as a result of Board 
meetings. 

 
BACKGROUND 

5. At the first full Board meeting on 6th June 2013, Board members agreed that 
there would be a Health and Wellbeing Officer group to provide regular 
support and a limited support infrastructure to the Board. In March 2016 this 
support was changed to a steering group. 

 

Page 15



The Steering group has not met since the last Board in November 2019. 
The ongoing need for this group will be kept under review as part of the 
development of the next borough strategy. It is refocussing to ensure 
progress on the Health and Wellbeing Strategy and key Board priorities 
including health inequalities, loneliness/social isolation, oral health, the 
areas of focus (alcohol, obesity, dementia, and mental health) and 
prevention. Key updates include: 
 
Ageing Well – Update from October 2019 workshop 
 
The Health and Wellbeing Board held a workshop on Ageing Well on 10th 
October 2019 at the High Speed Rail College. 25-30 participants attended 
which included a number of third sector organisations and their service 
users. The workshop was jointly facilitated between the council, Age UK, 
B:friend,  Methodist Homes (MHA) as well as Public Health England and 
Doncaster CCG. The event was a useful platform to start conversations 
around Doncaster becoming ‘age-friendly’ and consisted of a number of 
presentations about the local services followed by table top discussions 
about how it feels to age in Doncaster and how age friendly it is or is not. 
There were some interesting comments raised and themes emerging which 
are being written up and will be circulated to participants in due course. It is 
anticipated that this will inform the work of a developing ageing well agenda 
in Doncaster and a future ageing well board. A report from the workshop will 
be circulated early in the New Year. 
 
 
Board Effectiveness 
 
The effectiveness of the Board was reviewed against the 21st century public 
servant model using a series of interviews and a Board observation. The 
first step in the Board’s development was discussed at the development 
workshop in December. The key themes that the Board reflected on are: 

Effective use of the time and expertise of public servants 
Maximising the impact of political collaboration 
Maximising the impact of public collaboration 
Maintaining momentum 
 

The next workshop in February will concentrate on identifying 2-3 possible 
areas of focus for the Board in light of the development of Doncaster 
Growing Together and the development of the local integrated care 
partnership.  
 
Shaping Places for Healthier Lives - Expression of Interest 
 
The LGA is working in partnership with the Health Foundation on a new 
programme to tackle the wider determinants of health. Successful local 
systems will be supported with a three year learning approach focussing on 
using a complex systems approach, building cross sector partnerships and 
strengthening systems leadership. Doncaster Council intends to submit an 
expression of interest focused on aligning work on the wider determinants of 
health in the East of the Borough through the new ‘Towns deal’ with 
improvements in mental health outcomes. 
 

Page 16



South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Shadow Integrated Care System 
Collaborative Partnership Board 

There have been no meetings of the Board in the last period. 
 
Doncaster Joint Commissioning Management Board  
 
There have been no formal meetings of the Board in the last period.  
 
Forward Plan 
 
The Forward Plan for 2019/2020 is presented for debate, discussion and 
agreement. 

 
OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
6. None 
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED OPTION 
 
7. None  
 
 
IMPACT ON THE COUNCIL’S KEY OUTCOMES 
 
8.  

 Outcomes Implications  
 Doncaster Working: Our vision is for 

more people to be able to pursue their 
ambitions through work that gives 
them and Doncaster a brighter and 
prosperous future; 

 

 Better access to good fulfilling work 

 Doncaster businesses are 
supported to flourish 

  Inward Investment 
 

 
The Health and Wellbeing Board 
will contribute to this priority  

 Doncaster Living: Our vision is for 
Doncaster’s people to live in a 
borough that is vibrant and full of 
opportunity, where people enjoy 
spending time; 
 

 The town centres are the beating 
heart of Doncaster 

 More people can live in a good 
quality, affordable home 

 Healthy and Vibrant Communities 
through Physical Activity and Sport 

 Everyone takes responsibility for 
keeping Doncaster Clean 

 Building on our cultural, artistic and 
sporting heritage 

 
The Health and Wellbeing Board 
will contribute to this priority 

Page 17



 Doncaster Learning: Our vision is for 
learning that prepares all children, 
young people and adults for a life that 
is fulfilling; 
 

 Every child has life-changing 
learning experiences within and 
beyond school 

 Many more great teachers work in 
Doncaster Schools that are good or 
better 

 Learning in Doncaster prepares 
young people for the world of work  
 

 
The Health and Wellbeing Board 
will contribute to this priority 

 Doncaster Caring: Our vision is for a 
borough that cares together for its 
most vulnerable residents; 
 

 Children have the best start in life 

 Vulnerable families and individuals 
have support from someone they 
trust 

 Older people can live well and 
independently in their own homes 

 

 
The Health and Wellbeing Board 
will contribute to this priority  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Connected Council:  

 A modern, efficient and flexible 
workforce 

 Modern, accessible customer 
interactions 

 Operating within our resources and 
delivering value for money 

 A co-ordinated, whole person, 
whole life focus on the needs and 
aspirations of residents 

 Building community resilience and 
self-reliance by connecting 
community assets and strengths 

 Working with our partners and 
residents to provide effective 
leadership and governance  

 

 
The Health and Wellbeing Board 
will contribute to this priority 

 
 
RISKS AND ASSUMPTIONS 
 
9. None 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
10. No legal implications have been sought for this update paper. 
 
 

 

Page 18



FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
11. No financial implications have been sought for this update paper. 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 
 
12. No human resources implications have been sought for this update paper. 
 
TECHNOLOGY IMPLICATIONS 
 
13. No technology implications have been sought for this update paper. 
 
HEALTH IMPLICATIONS  

 
14. There are no additional health implications in this report. 
 
EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
15. The primary care committee and the Working Win approach both address 

the needs of some of the most vulnerable people in Doncaster. Assessing 
the impact of these approaches will be important. 

 
CONSULTATION 
 
16. None 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
17. None 
 
REPORT AUTHOR & CONTRIBUTORS 
Dr Rupert Suckling, Director, Public Health  
01302 734010   rupert.suckling@doncaster.gov.uk 
 
Louise Robson, Public Health Theme Lead, Public Health 
01302 734015    louise.robson@doncaster.gov.uk 
 

Dr Rupert Suckling  
Director Public Health  

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 
DONCASTER HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: DRAFT OUTLINE BUSINESS AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2019/20 
 

Date Board Core Business Partner Organisation and 
Partnership Issues 

 Plans and reports from  
o CCG 
o NHSE 
o DMBC 
o Health watch 
o RDaSH 
o DBH 

 Safeguarding reports 

 Better Care Fund 

 DPH annual report 

 Role in partnership 
stocktake 

 Wider stakeholder 
engagement and events 

 Relationship with Team 
Doncaster and other Theme 
Boards 

 Relationship with other key 
local partnerships 

 Health Protection 
Assurance Framework 

 Wellbeing and Recovery 
strategy 

 Adults and Social care 
Prevention Strategy 

 Housing 

 Environment 

 Regeneration 

HWBB Steering  Group 
Work plan 
 

 Areas of focus – 
schedule of reports and 
workshop plans 

 Integration of health 
and social care (BCF)) 
workshop plan 

 Other subgroups – 
schedule of reports 

 Communications 
strategy 

 Liaison with key local 
partnerships 

 Liaison with other 
Health and Wellbeing 
Boards (regional 
officers group) 

 Learning from     
Knowledge Hub 

Meeting/Workshop Venue 

16th January 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board meeting  

 HWBB Steering group 

 Outcomes framework 
               Health and Social  
               Care/BCF update 

 Adults Safeguarding 
annual report 

 Get Doncaster Moving  
update  

 Children and Young 
people Impact report 
update  
 

 

Civic office rooms 007a 
and 007b 

P
age 21



APPENDIX A 
DONCASTER HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: DRAFT OUTLINE BUSINESS AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2019/20 
 

 6th February 2020 Workshop 
Topic tbc 

Venue tbc   

12th March 2020 Board meeting 

  HWBB Steering group 

 Outcomes framework 
               Health and Social  
               Care/BCF update 
 
 

Civic office rooms 007a 
and 007b 

  
 
 
 

2nd April 2020 Workshop Venue tbc   

 

 

2019/20 Health and Wellbeing Board: future meetings  

 
 
12 March 2020 (Venue:  Rooms 007a/007b, Civic Office, Waterdale, Doncaster) 

11 June 2020 (Venue:  Rooms 007a/007b, Civic Office, Waterdale, Doncaster) 

3 September 2020 (Venue:  Rooms 007a/007b, Civic Office, Waterdale, Doncaster) 

12 November 2020 (Venue:  Rooms 007a/007b, Civic Office, Waterdale, Doncaster) 

 

P
age 22



APPENDIX A 
DONCASTER HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: DRAFT OUTLINE BUSINESS AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2019/20 
 

 
 
 Health and Wellbeing Workshop Dates – Topics/ venues/dates to be confirmed  
 
 
6th February 2020    9-12      Topic tbc 
 
2nd April 2020          9-12      Topic tbc 
 
2nd July 2020           9-12      Topic tbc 
 
8th October 2020      9-12     Topic tbc 
 
3rd December 2020   9-12     Topic tbc 
  

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 
 
Doncaster  
Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
Date: 16 January 2020 
 

Subject: Get Doncaster Moving – a whole systems approach to addressing inactivity 

Presented by: Clare Henry, Public Health Specialist 

Purpose of bringing this report to the Board 

Decision  

Recommendation to Full Council  

Endorsement x 

Information  

 

Implications Applicable Yes/No 

DHWB Strategy Areas of Focus Substance Misuse (Drugs and Alcohol)  

Mental Health  y 

Dementia y 

Obesity y 

Children and Families  y 

Joint Strategic Needs Assessment  

Finance 
 

Legal 
 

 

Equalities 
 

 

Other Implications (please list) :- addressing inactivity 
y 

 

How will this contribute to improving health and wellbeing in Doncaster? 

There is irrefutable evidence of the effectiveness of regular physical activity in the primary and 
secondary prevention of several chronic diseases, premature death as well as reduced risk of physical 
disability and dependence. 

Doncaster has persistently low levels of participation in physical activity that impact on the quality of 
life of its residents. Creating a more active borough is an investment in developing greater human, 
economic, social and environmental capital. High levels of inactivity have a negative impact on the 
health of people, economies and the environment. Higher levels of physical activity are associated 
with positive outcomes such as reduced crime, pollution and traffic. Productivity, school performance, 
property values, health and well-being improve drastically with an active population. 

 
 

Page 25

Agenda Item 9



 
 
 

Recommendations 

The Board is asked to:-  

 Reflect on their organisations role in addressing inactivity and whether they are doing enough 
to address this significant challenge? 

 To identify who in their organisation are the connectors to addressing inactivity? 

 To determine any opportunities where supporting people to move more can be embedded into 
their core business. 

  
 

Page 26



Annual Report

2019

P
age 27



What is Get Doncaster Moving?

• A whole system approach to addressing the 
challenge of Doncaster not being a place 
where it is easy to be active is easy.

• With a truly collaborative approach, we will 
be able to harness the resources and capacity 
that is available; to produce the sustainable, 
societal change that is essential for Doncaster 
to become an active place to live. 

• The physical activity system for Doncaster is 
complex. Early systems mapping work has 
allowed us to communicate this complexity, 
but we are clear that we will not have 
captured everything that is taking place in 
Doncaster that provides opportunities for 
people to be active.

• This report will outline the work that has 
been taking place in 2019 predominantly 
from the work overseen by the Get Doncaster 
Moving Programme and Advisory Boards.P

age 28



Get Doncaster Moving Way of Working

• Our Get Doncaster Moving principles describe 
the values led way of working. 

• We are adamant that the work that we do now 
must be sustainable and bring about change 
that sets us on our long journey to turn around 
our population inactivity levels.

• It focuses capacity and resources on changes 
that will have a long lasting impact on 
improving the conditions for residents to move 
more and be physically active.

• It needs to become the ‘normal’ thing to do. 
People moving more within their normal 
routines (not necessarily sport or structured 
activity) can have a huge positive impact on the 
health, wellbeing and vibrancy of a community 
and place. 

P
age 29



What have we learned?

What have we learned?

P
age 30



0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

Nov15-Nov16 May16-May17 Nov16-Nov17 May17-May18 Nov17-Nov18 May18-May19

Active 150+ mins

Doncaster Yorks Region Eng Linear (Doncaster)

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

35.0%

40.0%

Nov15-Nov16 May16-May17 Nov16-Nov17 May17-May18 Nov17-Nov18 May18-May19

Inactive <30 mins

Doncaster Yorks Region Eng Linear (Doncaster)

In May 2019, Doncaster was ranked as 39th MOST INACTIVE against all 317 Local Authorities in England. 

This means that we have 76,000 adults in Doncaster classified as sedentary. 

It has been difficult to measure differences between years, owing to the large confidence intervals, however the 

graphs demonstrate the direction of travel since 2015 which shows a positive trend for both active and inactive 

indicators for adults.

Investment from Sport England has allowed for the Active Lives Survey sample size to be boosted.

The Challenge P
age 31



Differences by demographics

• Age influences inactivity levels with those 
aged over 85 most likely to be inactive.

• Those with a disability are more likely to be 
inactive.

• White-British respondents are less likely to be 
inactive than people with any other ethnicity

• The probability of being defined as inactive 
decreases with socio-economic classes. The 
figure also shows a similar result for 
education.

• Those who are not employed have higher 
inactivity levels.

• There are high levels of inactivity in the most 
deprived areas BUT also in the least deprived 
areas. 

• A high proportion of females are inactive.

P
age 32



Our Children’s Activity Level

• Active Lives Children and Young People survey provides a comprehensive overview of physical activity and 
sport levels. The second survey took place during the academic year 2018/2019.

• The figures are positive for Doncaster with significant increases in the Active categories and significant 
decreases in the Less Active groups. There were 583 respondents in this latest survey against 417 in the 
previous. All figures are calculated at the 95% confidence interval. 

• Caution should be taken with these figures as the limited number of surveys, methodology and sample size 
is not sensitive enough to be able to confirm that this direction of travel but it is a positive start.

P
age 33



The Local Picture

• Our most deprived communities have people who 
are not able to take advantage of the opportunities 
to move more often as part of their daily lives. 

• To understand people’s everyday experiences of 
physical activity we commissioned Sheffield Hallam 
University who undertook 1200 door step surveys in 
communities identified where there were high 
proportions of people on low incomes and 
households with children and families.

• Physical activity was assessed using the short form of 
the Active Lives Survey and questions were designed 
to assess key barriers and facilitators using a 
psychological model designed to assess people’s 
capabilities, opportunities and motivations (the 
COM-B model).

• The results demonstrated that inactivity levels in the 
eight communities were much higher than our 
previous borough wide data highlighted.P

age 34



Behaviour Change – COM-BP
age 35



A Borough of Communities

Levels of inactivity in the eight communities are much 
higher than previous Active Lives Surveys have shown for 
Doncaster as a whole. There are variations between 
communities reinforcing the insight that we need to have a 
bespoke approach in each area of Doncaster. 

P
age 36



P
age 37



What have we been doing?

P
age 38



Whole Systems Working 
• A Whole Systems Approach focuses on connections, 

partnership dynamics and changes within the socio-ecological 
system locally. The GDM work focuses not solely on individuals 
but also the social and physical environment context. Thus 
understanding the influences on inactivity rather than a 
traditional approach targeting individuals lifestyle choices.

• To understand the policy context and be able to measure the 
impact of the GDM approach on system outcomes. There has 
been a policy audit analysis undertaken. Of 52 policies 
analysed just under half mentioned physical activity/sport. 
However of the 1800+ pages, fewer than 10% made reference 
to physical activity. This highlights that these references 
tended to be passing mentions rather than dedicated action to 
address the challenge.

• However, over the last year we have made significant progress 
on policy including:-
• Cycling Strategy 2019
• Dance Strategy 2019
• Separate Walking & Cycling policies in Local Plan
• Inclusive Growth Strategy
• Car Parking Strategy

P
age 39



Collaboration, coordination, connections

Our conversations with partners, stakeholders and 
organisations reiterate the need for regular opportunities to 
connect and network.

A social network analysis (SNA) in July 2019 surveyed 
approximately 50 stakeholders to identify connections 
between partners  and will help identify what systems 
change has occurred. 

In this diagram, the circles represent people and the lines 
indicate collaboration between each person.

4/5 of respondents were part of a board or partnership 
linked to the outcomes of GDM (Team Doncaster, HWBB, 
GDM Board).

The results indicated that relationships were fairly strong 
with only 15% being informal. However, only 17% of 
connections involve collaborating more than once a month 
with one-third occurring on an ad hoc basis. Therefore 
demonstrating that a high proportion were based on 
knowledge exchange, with work needed to improve 
collective decision making and problem solving.

P
age 40



Collaboration, coordination, connections
HWBB DGT Portfolio

Doncaster Active 
Travel Alliance

GDM Project 
Update Group

Active Schools 
Group

LDP Delivery Group

Active Communities 
Panel

GDM Programme
Board

GDM Advisory 
Board

GDM
Network

GDM
Network

GDM
Network

GDM
Network

Get Doncaster Moving Summit

To support the development of relationships and 
collaboration to addressing inactivity, we have 
continued to review different opportunities for 
stakeholders to contribute to the GDM strategy. 

There are a number of opportunities for stakeholders 
and organisations to influence changes within their own 
system and connect to others. From providing challenge 
at DGT Portfolio to attending as an interested 
individual/community organisation at the Summit.

In addition, we have provided structures that oversee 
the direction of the GDM strategy and lead its 
implementation. The GDM Programme Board is 
responsible for the monitoring overall GDM strategy 
progress (including the pace and impact of change) 
ensuring corrective action is taken as required.

P
age 41



Active Communities – Collaboration with Well Doncaster
Get Doncaster Moving and Well Doncaster share the same ambitions and Asset-Based principles of building on ‘what’s strong, not wrong’ in 

communities. The approach frames community development as something that happens ‘with’ and ‘by’ communities, rather than ‘to’ or 

‘for’. We have learned a lot from Well Denaby, and through supporting Yorkshire Sport Foundation’s ‘Active Dearne’ project, which are both 

designed with Asset Based Community Development at their heart.

The insight so far has told us that there are differences in capability, opportunity and motivation to be active across communities and 

between active and inactive people. The solutions and ideas that communities are starting to develop are all different; showing that what 

works in one area, may not necessarily work in another.

We have match-funded four Well Doncaster Officers, who have been a local presence and strengthened links between Well Doncaster, the

community and local services. This has ensured addressing inactivity remains fully integrated in the wider Team Doncaster community

development approach, embedded within community-led conversations and provides capacity for the community to shape the approach.

Community Explorers

We have trained up 30 Community Explorers (community researchers) who have completed over 100 interviews with their friends, family

and people in their community about physical activity. This has enables us to gain granular insight in a number of communities and informed

our hyper-local approach. The Explorers have become advocates for physical activity in their communities, and they now have the skills and

confidence to conduct further research in their voluntary and community sector organisations.

Active Communities Grants

In December 2019, we launched the Active Communities Grants scheme, that provides opportunities for local people, groups and 

organisations to apply for grants of up to £500 to support Doncaster residents to ‘get out and about more’ and be active where they live. 

The grants are available for constituted and unconstituted groups who have bold and innovative ideas to support people in their community.

Active Dearne

Unique partnership funded by Sport England, led by Yorkshire Sport Foundation and supported by Doncaster Council (match funded from 

Well Doncaster); that supports people on low incomes who live in the Dearne Valley to access opportunities to be active within their 

everyday lives. In the first year of the project, the focus has been in Denaby, working in collaboration with the Well Doncaster strengths-

based approach. The project will expand to new areas of Conisbrough and Mexborough in 2020.

P
age 42



Dance On

An approach to providing inactive women over the aged of 65yrs from low 

income areas with opportunities to move more through Dance. Doncaster was 

chosen by UK One Dance to be involved in a successful application to Sport 

England and match funded by Doncaster Public Health has enabled Darts to 

provide 358 sessions, 3 Dance On socials, and worked with over 400 participants.

Get Doncaster Dancing Strategy 2019

This aims to help more people of all ages to become active through participating 

in dance. The strategy was developed with the expert support of One Dance UK, 

the Get Doncaster Dancing Steering Group and through consultation with 

Doncaster residents and dance providers, it sets out how we hope to get more 

people participating in dance.

They GDD Steering Group are currently collaborating on the development of an 

implementation plan to realise the ambitions of the strategy 

https://getdoncastermoving.org/dance.

P
age 43

https://getdoncastermoving.org/dance


Doncaster Future Parks
• Parks and open spaces are consistently identified as valued assets for 

our residents. Within our appreciative inquiry approach, parks and open 
spaces are consistently highlighted as being important to residents. 

• As with all local authorities, austerity has impacted on the potential for 
developmental investment in parks. We have been successful with small 
isolated changes such as funding to improve the paths within a couple of 
parks and the piloting of solar lights being a first for Doncaster, but we 
are need of a whole system review of our approach to parks and open 
spaces. 

• We have worked with a wide range of partners, held two workshops 
with stakeholders and volunteers and had 1600 responses to our parks 
surveys.

• We have utilised funding from Sport England to get expert support to 
provide:-

• Overarching Framework: a strategic overview of Doncaster’s future vision and 
aspirations for its parks. 

• Effective Delivery Plan: support the development of the overarching strategic 
framework, we want the successful provider to develop an effective delivery plan 
to utilise resources in the system more effectively. 

• Bespoke Park Plans: individual future plans for 10-15 parks 
• Evaluation Framework: bespoke framework will provide the high level 

performance overview and plans to measure usage/impact at a local level. 

P
age 44



Active Travel

Active Travel has been highlighted with our systems mapping as a key strategy to provide 
an environment that supports residents to move more on a regular basis. 

Supporting active travel brings a number of co-benefits; helps to address our transport 
challenges, achieving our economic potential, help address air pollution, improve 
community connectedness and embeds physical activity into individuals daily lives.

P
age 45



Active Travel
There has been a significant amount of work that has taken place 
coordinated via the Doncaster Active Travel Alliance including:-

• £1.2 million funding secured from Transforming Cities Fund (TCF) 
for Active Travel Infrastructure.

• The adoption of Doncaster’s Walking Strategy.

• The development of separate walking and cycling policies in our 
Local Plan .

• Approval of Doncaster’s Cycling Strategy.

• Appointment of a dedicated Walking Officer – supported 14 
Community Street Audits providing community insight into local 
journeys made by residents, trained 38 volunteer health walk 
leaders and first aid.

• Active Travel Auditor –providing systematic process to highway 
and other infrastructure/ developments including TCF.

• Applied for approximately £20 million transformational package of 
active travel schemes.

P
age 46



Early Years – workforce development

• In Doncaster we believe that the first years of 
a children's life are vital in their long term 
health and wellbeing.

• Early years professionals have a huge impact 
on families’ emotional, physical and social 
development and wellbeing.

• Therefore we co-produced with early years 
practitioners from both public and private 
organisations a toolkit to support them to 
embed physical activity into their practice.

• To support the toolkit Public Health have 
trained 60 early years workers, including 
private and school nurseries, family hub staff 
and childminders. In the future the training 
will continue as part of the CYPF team 
training calendar.

P
age 47



Major Events
• Doncaster has developed a strong reputation for hosting major everts through 

the staging of the Tour de Yorkshire (TDY) in 2016, 2018, 2019 and two stages 
of the UCI road worlds in September of 2019

• From the learning of 2016 TDY and through research undertaken by Leeds 
Beckett University https://getdoncastermoving.org/insight-with-communities
we have developed a frame work approach of delivery to maximise the social 
impact from hosting these events.

• Through our early research into the Decay Curve of major event participation, 
we are starting to understand the harder challenge of how we can use major 
events to increase levels of physical activity in our population. Through our 
initial learning and gamification approach to delivery, we hope to better 
understand and  increase physical activity levels through major events. This 
work will continue as we plan for the delivery of our Rugby League World  Cup 
games.

• Our research of social impact and understanding of how major events can 
encourage residents to become more active has been identified as national 
best practice by UK Sport and Sport England. We have advised numerous local 
authorities as far as Cornwall and the North East. In addition we are 
supporting British Cycling, British Climbing Olympic team, RFU and RFL to 
maximise the social impact of their key events and delivery programmes.

Across the 4 events we have:-
• Attracted 155,000 spectators
• Supported 11,900 School Children's engagement and spectating
• Delivered Major international sporting event to 67.8% of Borough 

Residents living within a 1 mile radius.
• Supported 111 community groups to deliver events or activities
• Provided 33 micro grants of up to £200 engaging 11,066 residents 

P
age 48

https://getdoncastermoving.org/insight-with-communities


Sports Participation
The Sports Participation project has been developed in order to keep people playing sport, whilst also targeting new people to engage in sports 
participation. This involves capacity building and activation in both traditional sports clubs and community settings. The project aims are:

• To help clubs and voluntary sector organisations to sustain and grow their provision of high quality sporting opportunities.

• To increase the number of people who take part in sport twice or more in 28 days, while keeping those who regularly take part in sport active.

• To develop the coaching and volunteer workforce, so that more people have the skills and knowledge to inspire and motivate people to participate 

We also know that sports participation is underpinned by a workforce of paid and (mostly) volunteer roles, such as (not limited to) officials, coaches, 
administrators and stewards. Without the role of volunteers in sport, most activity wouldn’t happen. Therefore, supporting the recruitment, 
development and retention of volunteers is essential if we are to meet the demand required to increase sports participation.

Some key milestones in the past 12 months via the Sports Participation project include:

• Provided funding to upskill 84 coaches and/or new volunteers to enable increased 
delivery of community sessions.

• Supported 5 clubs to work towards obtaining minimum operating standards to enable 
them to be effective, ethical and sustainable.

• Support and funded 24 clubs create a new section within an existing club or brand new 
club.

• Delivered First Aid, Safeguarding, Inclusive Sport Training for 34 club members .
• Supported 49 individual clubs across Doncaster to access funding and club 

development guidance.

P
age 49



What’s Next?

P
age 50



Areas of Opportunity
Active Practices

• Working with health care professionals to identify opportunities for supportive 
conversations with patients so they can experience the range of health benefits 
that being active can bring. Including Clinical Champions Training, Active Practice 
Charter, strengths based conversations training and connections to hyperlocal 
opportunities.

Children & Young People

• Despite a relatively high level of investment and focus on opportunities for 
children and young people, levels of inactivity in children and young people 
remain persistently low. We have recently collaborated with the Children and 
Families Board, to investigate what is affecting activity levels across the whole 
system in Doncaster. Work is due to start in January 2020 to identify and lead the 
necessary system changes to impact behaviour change.

P
age 51



Areas of Opportunity - Active Travel

• As previously described Doncaster Council has applied for 
approximately £20 million transformational package of schemes 
to open up new active travel routes across the Borough through 
the Transforming Cities Fund. 

• Key packages in this scheme include the creation of cycle lanes, 
new cycle and pedestrian crossings, and a series of strategic 
cycling and walking improvement works to deliver new active 
travel connections. 

• We are reviewing our current revenue funded active travel 
programmes to ensure that there is an approach that provides 
residents with the capabilities to utilise the opportunities that 
new active travel infrastructure will provide.

• There will be a number of approaches and events planned to 
raise the awareness of the affect of traffic and congestion on 
activity levels linking to the health challenge of air pollution. 
This will include school road closures and awareness of the 
playing out toolkit enabling residents to temporarily close their 
street to traffic for children to play.

P
age 52



Areas of Opportunity – Influencing & Communication

• Supporting behaviour change is consistently 
highlighted as being  key to addressing 
inactivity. 

• It is vital that the narrative we use to address 
inactivity is pertinent to Doncaster.

• Therefore investment is being used to 
provide an in depth approach to using a 
creative approach to influencing and 
communications.

• We are working with BJL who have vast 
experience working with major brands by 
building bespoke creative communications, 
platforms, and multichannel activation.

• They have reviewed and distilled all of the 
data provided and have used this information 
to create a hierarchy of key insights that we 
believe should drive our approach and 
strategy (see diagram opposite). 

• To support this work we have developed 
guidance with the FrameWorks Institute, to 
help us build a narrative and frame the issue 
that will change attitudes and behaviours 
towards inactivity.

P
age 53



Get in touch & further information

• This report only provides the highlights of the extensive amount of 
work that has taken place. For more in-depth information please visit 
www.getdoncastermoving.org or alternatively get in touch with the 
GDM team at GDM@doncaster.gov.uk .

P
age 54

http://www.getdoncastermoving.org/


 

 

 

 
 
 
 
Doncaster  
Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
Date: 16th Jan 2020 
 

Subject: Well Doncaster 

Presented by: Vanessa Powell-Hoyland, Project Manager and Emma Nicholas-Hernandez, 
Public Health Improvement Officer 

Purpose of bringing this report to the Board 

Decision  

Recommendation to Full Council  

Endorsement  

Information x 

 

Implications Applicable Yes/No 

DHWB Strategy Areas of Focus Substance Misuse (Drugs and Alcohol) No 

Mental Health  No 

Dementia No 

Obesity No 

Children and Families  No 

Joint Strategic Needs Assessment No 

Finance 
No 

Legal 
 

No 

Equalities 
 

No 

Other Implications (please list) 
  

 

 

How will this contribute to improving health and wellbeing in Doncaster? 

Information regarding a evidenced based approach to reducing health inequalities at population level 
through asset based community development  

 

Recommendations 

The Board is asked to note the update on the Well Doncaster programme and how it cuts across 
Team Doncaster priorities, feeds into the Place Plan and address the Boards priorities at  population 
level.  
  
 

Page 55

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank



Vanessa Powell-Hoyland, Project Manager

Emma Nicholas, Public Health Improvement Officer

P
age 57



Strategic goals

 Addressing inequality by improving the health of the poorest, fastest;

 Increasing resilience at individual, household and community levels; 

and

 Reducing levels of worklessness, a cause and effect of poor health

 Evaluating, replicating and scale-up Well Doncaster in other suitable 

areas

 Enable residents to influence changes in their local area, and in the 

system

 Increase and sustain physical activity levels in priority groups

P
age 58



Well Doncaster Community led Health and Wealth 
In

d
iv

id
u
a
l • Improved Health 

literacy

• Behavior change

• Self-efficacy, self 
esteem, confidence

• Self-management of 
long term health 
conditions 

• Social support, 
Wellbeing - quality of 
life 

• Personal 
development– life 
skills, employment, 
education

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

• Social capital – social 
networks, community 
cohesion, sense of 
belonging and trust

• Community resilience

• Changes in physical, 
social and economic 
environment

• Increased community 
Resources

• Community leadership

• Community mobilisation

• Representation and

• advocacy

• Civic engagement -
Volunteering and voting O

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l • Public health 

intelligence

• Changes in policy

• Re-designed services

• Service utilisation –
reach, uptake of 
screening and 
preventive services

• Improved access to 
health and care 
services, culturally 
relevant services 

P
age 59



Journey so far…………….

• Started work in Denaby in 2015 and established an approach of 

embedding community insight into asset based community 

development

• Taken time to build relationships of trust with the community 

leading to partnership working

• Commissioned and secured funding for a wide range of 

approaches to improve the wider determinants of health 

• Gathered learning to inform wider practice and scale out approach

• Influencing Team Doncaster approach to working with 

communities  

P
age 60



Stainforth Bentley

Edlington Central

Gathering 

community 

insight and 

supporting co-

production and 

co-delivery 

Supporting 

collaboration 

meet 

community 

needs

Identifying 

and 

developing 

assets 

Influencing 

partnership 

working, health 

prevention and 

self-

management

P
age 61



Outputs
• Tracked via Outcome Based Accountability. Examples;

• Supporting local leaders; 9 new groups helped to constitute by Well 

Doncaster, 

• Leadership Training; completed by 6 community leaders from anchor 

organisations

• Denaby Community Library; 7 local volunteer trained to community led 

advisers, 

• Denaby Reads; Since April 2017, adults supported to read/write on 1:1 basis. 

Engaging parents at schools & Family Hub

• Peer Support Groups 7 new groups supporting long term health conditions

• Generalist advice; Over 700 people accessed generalist advice since Jan 

2016 around debt, housing and benefits

• Bespoke training on how to write a good funding application (n11)

• 4 Street Audits completed 

• Walking for health 2 new groups 

P
age 62



Outputs continued
• Get Doncaster Enterprising: over 188 people engaged with service, 78 people 

completed courses, 37 people received start up grant and over 55 people 

registered and trading

• b:Friend: Average 21 people attending weekly befriending sessions and local 

people volunteering to befriend, 7 befriending pairing

• Lunch bunch  

• Darling Buds of Denaby: 24 people per week at locally-led social group 

(savings club, trips, music, games, laughter!)  

• Community Mural: 8 community workshops and 10 volunteers supporting the 

painting of a 30m mural in the heart of the community

• Third Sector Development: quarterly workshops with over 15 anchor 

organizations from across the Doncaster with the focus to develop networks and 

joint working- developed into Well Doncaster Communities 

P
age 63



Additional funds Influenced  

• Bumping Space (People’s Health Lottery)                                           £24k

• SYHA (Big Lottery and European Social Fund)                     £54k

• Heritage Project (Esme Fairburn)                                                           £78k 

• Connecting Communities Improving Lives   (Arts Council England)                            £500k 

• Economically Disadvantaged Communities  (Sport England)                                      £100k

• Volunteer for health        (Reaching Communities)                                              £13k                                                            

• Power to Change Community Business Fund   (Reaching Communities)                   £300k

• Edlington Hill Top                 (Reachaing Communities, Big Lottery Fund)                 £350k 

• Small  Community  Investments                                                                                 £4k                                                                                             

£1.073 million P
age 64



Well Doncaster 2020 … Community Led 

Health and Wealth

The assets within communities, such as skills and knowledge, social 

networks and community organisations, are building blocks for good health

The approach has to be community owned and led which will also strengthen 

its sustainability. 

We need to continue to build on identifying and developing local skills, 

talents, local knowledge and resources: shaping locally led projects that 

emerge. 

To have a future we need to evidence to share to local leaders, 

commissioners and service providers: to consider how community-centred 

approaches that build on individual and community assets can become an 

essential part of local health plans

P
age 65



Well Doncaster- Community Led Health and 

Wealth 

 We can’t and will not close the health gap without involving and 

hearing those most affected

 We need to design solutions that work using the health  

intelligence, creativity and ensuring we do this involving the 

communities from the start

 We can’t influence and sustain change without the support of our 

communities.

P
age 66



 

 
 
 
 
Doncaster  
Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
Date: 16 January 2020 
 

Subject: Children & Young People’s Plan (CYPP) Impact Report 

Presented by: Dawn Hall Local Office of the Children’s Commissioner,  

Debbie Burton Engagement Manager 

Purpose of bringing this report to the Board 

Decision  

Recommendation to Full Council  

Endorsement  

Information x 

 

Implications Applicable Yes/No 

DHWB Strategy Areas of Focus Substance Misuse (Drugs and Alcohol)  

Mental Health   

Dementia  

Obesity  

Children and Families  x 

Joint Strategic Needs Assessment  

Finance 
 

Legal 
 

 

Equalities 
 

 

Other Implications (please list) 
 

 

How will this contribute to improving health and wellbeing in Doncaster? 

In 2017 we released our Children & Young People’s Plan which set out how we in Doncaster 
were going to improve the outcomes and experiences of all our children and young people 
through until 2020. The plan focused on 4 themes; 
• Keeping our children and young people safe 
• Ensuring our children and young people are happy & healthy 
• Helping our children and young people achieve in their 
education 
• Striving for equality in everything we do. 

Page 67

Agenda Item 11



We are now two years into our delivery against the priorities within that plan and are able 
through this report to demonstrate some real positive changes that have been made and the 
impact those have had on the outcomes and experiences of our children and young people.  
 
 

Recommendations 

The Board is asked to receive and consider the content of the report. 
  
  
 

Page 68



DONCASTER

www.doncaster.gov.uk

Published 
December 2019

Impact Report 2019

Children & Young People’s Plan

Page 69



Page 70



Children & Young People’s Plan

Contents

Foreword 4

Introduction 5

Safe 6

Happy & Healthy 8

Achieve 13

Equality 16

Participation & Engagement Strategy: 
Assessment of Progress  20

Child Poverty Commission: 
Summary of Conclusions 22

Next Steps: Child Friendly Doncaster 24

Your Voice Doncaster 26

Impact Report 2019

3
Page 71



We are another year 
into the delivery of 
our Children and 
Young People’s Plan.

We are encouraged to see that we are delivering positive 
outcomes for Doncaster’s children and young people.

This not only benefits them directly 
but will also benefit Doncaster as 
these children and young people 
move forward into adulthood.

Our successes have continued to build in the last 12 months 
with a real focus being on improving the already strong 
working relationships across the partnership and delivering 
high quality front line services; this was evident in the 
outcome of our recent, very successful SEND inspection 
which highlighted our partnership approach as a real 
strength in Doncaster.

It is fair to say that we have not rested on our laurels 
in Doncaster. We have continued to drive forward in 
delivering the change our borough needs. The Social 
Mobility Opportunity Area continues to deliver targeted 
improvements to Doncaster’s most disadvantaged schools 
and communities with expanding essential life skills work, 
targeted support for schools, and a totally overhauled 
careers information, advice and guidance offer.

We have continued to expand capacity in alternative and 
specialist education settings and increase the front line 
capacity across a host of services within education, health, 
and social care.

Our journey began back in 2017 with an outcomes focused drive 
to improve the lives and experiences of Doncaster’s children and 
young people. Two years on it is great to see the hard work of all 
the partners in Doncaster paying off and making a real difference 
to our children and young people.

It is not just our success that is worth championing this year. 
Our young people in every age bracket from Key Stage 1 and 
2, through to GCSE’s and A-Levels, did astonishingly well in 
their exams this year.

Their results were some of the best 
Doncaster has ever had and we are 
incredibly proud of all their hard 
work and hope they reap their rewards 
in the years to come.

Measuring and demonstrating the impact of our work is 
important to understand where change has occurred and 
created better outcomes for Doncaster’s children.  Through 
continuous evaluation we are aware of where and how we 
need to strive to improve in certain areas, such as educational 
attainment and access to health and care services. This will 
ensure no child in Doncaster is left behind and outcomes for 
all are improved.

In the coming twelve months the Partnership will continue 
to work together on delivering the Children and Young 
People’s Plan, ensuring its priorities are at the heart of our 
decision making; and that children and young people hold 
us to account to ensure we deliver our ambition to make 
Doncaster the Most Child Friendly borough. Our experiences 
across the last two years and the coming twelve months will 
then inform our plans for the next iteration of the Children & 
Young People’s Plan.

Foreword

Nuala Fennelly
Cabinet Member for Children, 
Young People and Schools

Riana Nelson
Director of Learning, 
Opportunities and Skills

4
Page 72



Happy 
& Healthy:

This will be followed up by a case study that demonstrates 
how these improvements have led to improvements in young 
people’s experiences of services. Finally, there will be a short 
assessment of each theme outlining some high level successes 
and areas of focus for each theme.

Another change is that this year the information that is 
contained within the report was collected and then selected by 
our Young Advisors, as they have taken on a more prominent 
role in holding us all to account for delivery against the 
commitments within the Children & Young People’s Plan.

A final addition when compared to last year’s document is the 
inclusion of an assessment of the Participation & Engagement 
Strategy and an overview of the findings of the Child Poverty 
Commission. Both are fundamentally linked to the Children & 
Young People’s Plan so their inclusion adds to the document and 
its assessment of the past year.

In 2017 we released our Children & Young People’s 
Plan which set out how we in Doncaster were going 
to improve the outcomes and experiences of all our 
children and young people through until 2020.

The plan focused on 4 themes;

• Keeping our children and young people safe

• Ensuring our children and young people are happy & healthy

• Helping our children and young people achieve in their 
education

• Striving for equality in everything we do

We are now two years into our delivery against the priorities 
within that plan and are able to demonstrate some real positive 

changes that have been made and the impact those have had 
on the outcomes and experiences of our children and young 
people.

Last year’s report was set out to guide the direction of work in 
each of the themes after a dynamic year in which the beginnings 
of the plan were being implemented. It was felt that this was 
not required this time around as the plan has been running long 
enough that initiatives and priorities are very much embedded 
and delivering results to our children and young people.  As 
such, this year’s report has been set out in a different way.

The report will include assessments of each theme individually. 
Each of the four themes will have a section of infographics that 
set out some important improvements that have been delivered 
in the past year.

Safe:

Children and young people 
feel safer in Doncaster

(Pupil Lifestyle Survey)

More children and young 
people than ever before 
are accessing our mental 
health consultation and 
advice service

(CAMHs)

Educational Attainment 
has improved across 
all key stages since the 
release of the Children & 
Young People’s Plan

(DfE)

The voice of children and 
young people  with SEND 
is given high priority in 
Doncaster

(OFSTED – SEND 
Inspection)

Achieve: Equality:

5

Introduction

Page 73



Safe 

Children have access to 
the right services at the 
earliest opportunity

Feel safe – knowing they can safely 
live and thrive in the borough

Domestic abuse 
practice is transformed 
across Doncaster

Supported by 
someone they trust

No child suffers 
significant harm as 
a result of neglect

Equipped to handle bullying – 
more resilient and better able 
to handle difficult situations

Keep teenagers 
and young 
people safe

Key Priorities

Children & Young People Priorities

85%
of Primary aged young 
people feel safe going 
out during the day
(source: Pupil Lifestyle Survey)

12% 
REDUCTION
in knife crime 
(source: South Yorkshire Police)

80%
of secondary age young 
people feel safe going 
out during the day
(source: Pupil Lifestyle Survey)

The number of secondary 
aged young people experiencing 
violence in the home has nearly

 HALVED
(source: Pupil Lifestyle Survey)

In the last year, the number of children in care has been 

safely reduced by around 10% 

(source: DCST)

Keeping our children 
and young people safe

6
Page 74



In the past year partners from across the borough 
have continued to build upon successes that we have 
achieved since 2017 and implement improvements 
in the areas that have been outlined previously.
A key outcome of this work is that, as seen in responses to our 
Pupil Lifestyle Survey, our young people feel safer within their 
communities; this can, in part at least, be directly linked to the 
reintroduction of community policing in the borough, better 
partnership working between police and community teams to 
build positive relationships with communities and deal with 
issues before they escalate more effectively. This was evident in 
the joint, targeted approach taken to anti-social behaviour and 
substance misuse in Doncaster Town Centre.

We are making great strides in safely reducing the number 
of children in care and improving the use of early help 
support services to support our young people and families 
more effectively at an earlier point. Our neglect awareness is 
improving thanks to an increase in the use and profile of the 
neglect toolkit; although there is more that can be done to 
ensure this is fully embedded in the practice of organisations 
that support children and young people in the borough. 
Likewise, our approach to tackling domestic abuse with 
specially trained staff working with families is still delivering 
excellent results.

There is however, still scope for improving the way that need 
is identified to ensure that help and support is offered at the 
earliest opportunity. This will continue to be addressed through 
continuous service improvements.

Our case study for the 
‘Safe’ theme relates to the 
key priority ‘Children have 
access to the right services 
at the earliest opportunity’. 

It was provided by the 
team that run Project 3, a 
drop-in and appointment 
led clinic that specialises 
in a range of different 
early help, sexual health 
and supportive services. 
Within those services is 
Hidden Harm Support 
which enables family and 
friends or organisations 
like schools to refer people 
who have, or are being 
impacted by someone 
with, a drug and alcohol 
problem. 

The names within the case 
study have been changed 
to protect the identities of 
those involved.

Safe Case Study

Safe Theme Review

Family Hidden Harm Support
A referral was received from school to Project 3 for support 
for 9 year old Sophie and her 11 year old brother Oscar and 
their parents for support around Hidden Harm.  The school 
were concerned that the children’s attendance in school was 
poor, there were some behavioural issues and they were often 
distracted.  Sophie and Oscars parents were both known to use 
substances.  

The family were assessed by the Family Moving On Together 
Team and agreed to attend the 8 week family programme. At 
the start of the programme the family had not discussed the 
impact of the parents drug use on their family functioning.  
Both parents believed they had protected their children from 
exposure to their drug use, however, both children were angry 
and demonstrated more of an understanding than their parents 
had realised.  

During the 8 week programme the family engaged in sessions 
around understanding addiction, communication, family history 
and self-care. Using games, arts, and discussion, the family 
began to understand one another and were able to speak 
openly about how they have experienced living together. 

Both parents continue to engage with adult drug and alcohol 
services and Oscar has continued with one to one support with 
a specialist worker in Project 3.  Sophie did not feel she needed 
ongoing support from Project 3, but is accessing support sessions 
via pastoral support in school. Children’s Social Care have 
commented on the parents improved ability to reflect on their 
own behaviours and the children’s attendance and behaviour in 
school has improved.

7
Page 75



Happy & Healthy Ensuring our children and young 
people are happy & healthy

Children have the 
best start in life

Better knowledge of services 
– what is available to them in 
their area

Children and young people 
are healthy, have a sense of 
wellbeing, and are resilient

Reduced stigma around mental 
health – timely support and 
access to services

Children and young people’s 
development is underpinned 
through a healthy lifestyle

School nurses to be available 
more around school and offer 
increased access

Children & Young People Priorities

ALL 
47
of our school nurses 
sessions delivered up to 
January 2019 were deemed to 
be informative and helpful 
by the children and families 
accessing them.
(source: School Nursing Team)

100%

Good Level of 
Development 
(GLD) has risen by 
2% to 72.5% and is 
0.8% above national 
average which comes after

4 years of 
continuous 
improvement
(source: DfE)

The number of children and young people 
engaging with the CAMHs consultation 
and advice service has RISEN BY 20%

The number of young people 
who have ever smoked or 
tried smoking has

GREATLY 
REDUCED

Primary aged has reduced 
BY OVER HALF (5%-2%)
Secondary aged has 
NEARLY HALVED 
(From 13% to 7%)
(source: Pupil Lifestyle Survey)

referrals 
to CAMHs 
for those 
in crisis 2595 3129

to
From

(source: CAMHs)

(source: CAMHs)

39% FEWER

2017/18
2018/19

Key Priorities

The number of 
secondary aged 
young people 
drinking alcohol 
in the week prior 
to being surveyed 
has also 

REDUCED
 (24%-14%)
(source: Pupil Lifestyle Survey)

60%
DROP

46%
DROP

143
2016/17

87
2018/19

PRIMARY
AGED

SECONDARY
AGED

46%
DROP

8
Page 76



Happy & Healthy Case Study

Our case study for the 
‘Happy & Healthy’ theme 
relates to the key priority 
‘Children and young people 
are healthy, have a sense of 
wellbeing, and are resilient’, 
and the children and young 
people priority ‘Reduced 
stigma around mental 
health – timely support and 
access to services’.

It was provided by the 
Children & Adolescent 
Mental Health Service 
which provides mental 
health assessments, 
therapy and interventions 
for children, young people 
up to the age of 18 years 
and their families or 
identified carers when the 
child and young person is 
experiencing emotional or 
mental health difficulties.

The names within the case 
study have been changed 
to protect the identities of 
those involved.

Child & Adolescent 
Mental Health Support
Richard was first referred to Child and Adolescent Mental 
Health Services (CAMHs) by his GP when he was 15 with 
concerns centring on low mood and anxiety associated with 
school. The School were unaware of any issues or concerns with 
Richard and spoke very positively about him in school.  

The Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services Locality 
Worker arranged a meeting in school with Richard, his mum, 
and a member of student support staff from Richard’s school. 
The session allowed him to share his concerns in a safe and 
supportive environment and in turn, allowed the Child and 
Adolescent Mental Health Services Locality Worker to outline 
the different support available to Richard and how he could 
access it. Richard said that this session allowed him to engage 
with the offer of support and feel listened to and supported 
from the start.

In this instance, Richard chose one to one sessions that were 
held at school as his preferred support. Richard engaged in 
the sessions really well and used the time to talk, explore, and 
consider what his situation was, what his worries were, and 
what his responsibilities and priorities were. These sessions 
seem to benefit Richard and his mental wellbeing as they gave 
him permission to look at his situation and think about how he 
could take control to change things for himself. 

As a result, Richard experienced an improvement in his mood, a 
greater ability to control and manage his mood, and a stronger 
sense of self.

Richard fed back that this flexibility of taking the service to him 
had benefitted him and the way he had been able to engage 
with and access the required support.

9
Page 77



Our work within Happy & 
Healthy is primarily led by 
the Local Transformation 
Plan which NHS England 
has recently recognised 
as a national example of 
best practice.

This is a fantastic achievement and most importantly, evident 
from the improvements made to both services and outcomes 
within physical and mental health Services.

Within physical health services, there are success stories in our 
school nursing team and Project 3 clinics. Our school nursing 
team is more accessible and continues to receive positive 
feedback from the children, young people, parents and carers 
that use it. Likewise, Project 3, a drop-in and appointment led 
clinic that specialises in a range of different early help, sexual 
health and supportive services is very highly regarded. It is 
very accessible and delivers a high quality, heavily relied upon 
service in Doncaster communities and continues to receive 
excellent feedback from its clients and meet the targets it is set 
both locally and nationally.

Within mental health, we are improving the availability of 
mental health support at lower levels of need to support 
children and young people who do not meet the criteria for 
formal CAMHs interventions. This led to the creation of the 
CAMHs consultation & advice service which has seen referrals 
and usage grow notably, from 2595 to 3129 consultations, since 
its inception suggesting its provision was needed and it is now a 
core part of the local offer.

Doncaster is a trailblazer for a school 
based approach to providing mental health 
support and reducing waiting times.

The Education Mental Health Practitioners have been recruited 
and are currently being trained. The pilot will then be rolled out 
in pilot schools located across all localities within the borough.

Happy & Healthy Review

Good session with a 
lovely school nurse”

Couldn’t be better”

Excellent!”

The service is a good 
idea, helpful, and friendly”

“

“
brilliant, very detailed 
and lovely staff”“

“

“

Very friendly and 
understanding. 
No judgement”

“

School Nursing 
Team feeback...

Project 3 
feedback...

10
Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Achieve Helping our children and young 
people achieve in their education

Ensure that all children 
are school ready

Life skills – making sure they 
are prepared for adulthood

All children attend a good or 
better setting and aspirations 
are raised to ensure they 
reach their full potential

Pathways to employment 
– ensuring that they are 
moving towards good quality, 
sustainable work

Young people are equipped 
to access education, 
employment, or training in 
a way that supports future 
social mobility

A broad and balanced curriculum 
equipping them with the life 
skills needed to be independent 
and successful as an adult

Children & Young People Priorities

99%
of our Early Years Providers are 
rated Good or Outstanding by 
Ofsted compared with 95% nationally

Key Priorities

(source: DfE) (source: SMOA)88%
of our schools (112/127) are accessing the 
£2.75 million investment in Essential Life 
Skills extracurricular provision

Key Stage 4 (source: DfE)
Our attainment 8 score shows that 
our young people have, on average,

increased 
their grade 
in one 
subject
compared to last year.

Key Stage 4 (source: DfE)
The number of young people achieving a 4+ 
in English and Maths has RISEN BY 3.5% 
compared to a national increase of 0.7%. This has

halved our gap with 
national average 
in just 
3 years

Reading increased by 4.5% 
compared to 1.7% nationally

Writing increased by 4.6% 
compared to only 2.2% nationally

Maths increased by 7.8% 
compared to 3.8% nationally

6.6% 
increase
locally for Key Stage 2 Three Year 
Trend in Reading, Writing and 
Maths compared to 3.7% nationally

(source: DfE)

13
Page 81



SEND Placement in 
Mainstream School
Rosie is a very happy, sociable and intelligent little girl who lives 
at home with her family.  Rosie has spent a considerable amount 
of time in hospital due to her complex medical needs. 

Rosie’s communication skills are delayed for a child of her 
age. She is only able to achieve minimal weak voice due to her 
condition.

Rosie is currently tube-fed and does not have anything orally; 
this means she is on continuous 24 hour feeds through her 
gastrostomy and relies on an adult for her feeding. She also has 
limited ability to walk unaided and is dependent on a ventilator 
to support her lungs.

Her family did not feel a special school would be able to meet 
her needs because Rosie is a bright girl, who learns through 
imitation and would benefit from being around peers who she 
can learn from. 

The Special Educational Needs Team worked with the education 
and health and care professionals concerned to ensure a very 
robust assessment was undertaken. As a result an Education, 
Health and Care plan was put in place in October 2018. Despite 
Rosie’s very complex health needs, everyone involved ensured 
that the right support was in place to enable Rosie to both start 
and then remain in a mainstream education setting. In July 2019 
a visit by a portage worker, who specialises in offering support 
to pre-school children in their homes, noted:

“Rosie is now attending full sessions this week for 4 days and 
next week for 5 days. The School are very pleased with Rosie’s 
progress and say she is settling in very well. Having the nurse 
alongside Rosie in class is not causing any problems. Other 
children have accepted her and she is happy to be amongst the 
whole class. Her confidence is growing in each session. Rosie 
explores messy play resources and, in particular, she likes to join 
in with singing and is learning new songs rapidly.”

Achieve Case Study
Our case study for the 
‘Achieve’ theme relates 
to the key priority ‘Ensure 
that all children are school 
ready’.

It was provided by 
the Special Education 
Needs Team who have 
responsibility for assessing 
children and young people 
with additional needs 
and then working with 
colleagues across health 
and education to ensure 
that suitable education 
placements and care 
arrangements are made for 
the child in question.

The names within the case 
study have been changed 
to protect the identities of 
those involved.

14
Page 82



In the past year, we have seen elements of our 
education and skills system develop in strength.
Exam results across all key stages of education, have either 
improved or are showing improvements. Doncaster’s results 
have either matched the national average or have closed the 
gap by a substantial margin; our early year’s results in particular 
are now consistently above national averages both in terms of 
outcomes and the number of settings rated good or outstanding. 
All of these are remarkable improvements from where results 
were at the beginning of the Children & Young People’s Plan.

Through our work as a Social Mobility Opportunity Area we 
have also made great strides to improve life skills and access 
to careers information, advice and guidance which are key 
elements of ensuring that our children and young people 
are ready for the transition into adulthood and associated 
education, employment, or training.

This is evident in the work being done on the new careers 
advice platform, Start Doncaster, and the £2.75m investment in 
providing life skills for our young people.

Partners across the sector are working more effectively together 
to try and tackle systemic issues and improve outcomes. This has 
brought notable successes this year with the positive outcome 
of the recent Special Educational Needs Ofsted inspection, 
highlighting strong collaboration across the sector. These 
successes have been built upon a host of different work, from 
school improvement activities like teacher training and standard 
and effectiveness offers, to improving partnership arrangements 
with traditional partners in the public sector and also wider 
partnerships like those being created with businesses as part of 
the Social Mobility Opportunity Area.

This holistic approach to improving 
outcomes for young people has been a 
more effective approach to improvement 
than a singular focus on specific areas.

Moving forward there needs to be a focus on building upon the 
successes and improved partnership we have seen within the 
sector so far and try to deliver excellence more consistently. This 
focus will help to deliver solutions within Doncaster’s education 
system. Such as, defining career pathways in the post 16 arena, 
improving the quality of our schools, and reducing the high 
levels of exclusions, particularly the recorded levels within the 
secondary system. 

Achieve Theme Review

15
Page 83



Equality Striving for equality 
in everything we do

Diminish the difference between disadvantaged and 
non-disadvantaged children and young people

Treated respectfully – seen as 
valuable members of society 
with something unique to 
bring to discussions

Listened to – make them feel that their 
opinion is valued. This should happen 
in a supportive, nurturing capacity or 
an informative capacity to enable to 
explore a variety of career paths

Fewer children live in poverty

Better incentives – 
encouraging positive 
choices and patterns 
of behaviour

Children & Young People Priorities

9154 votes in 2017 
(32% of youth population)

11635 votes in 2018 
(40% of youth population)

(source: UK Youth Parliament)

The ‘Make Your Mark’ ballot gives young people across the country a say on what is to be debated on the green benches of 
the House of Commons by Members of Youth Parliament. In 2019, Climate Change was voted the biggest issue for young people.

Young 
Commissioners 
Recruited

Young 
Advisors 
Recruited

8
10

Stonewall recognises Doncaster Council as “one of the leading local 
authorities in the country on LGBT-inclusion in schools and settings 
and supporting LGBT children and young people in their local community”

Doncaster was 

1st 
in the country to run 
a Junior Make Your 
Mark campaign

Make Your Mark 
 
Top 3 voted issues (2018)
1) Mental Health
2) Knife Crime
3) Equal Pay

Key Priorities

Doncaster
37.2 in 2018
34.9 in 2019 

Regional
33.5 in 2018 
33.6 in 2019 

National
31.8 in 2018 
32.4 in 2019

The Inequality Gap has decreased 
for the first time in 3 years as the 
gap regionally and nationally has grown. (source: DfE)

16
Page 84



Our case study for the 
‘Equality’ theme relates to 
all the children and young 
people priorities within the 
theme.

It was provided by 
the Participation & 
Engagement Team who 
have responsibility for 
seeking the view of children 
and young people across 
the borough, supporting 
and facilitating any 
campaigns being run on 
behalf of young people, 
and championing their 
successes.

Appointment of Junior Civic Mayor

As part of our work to become the most 
child friendly borough in the country, 
we have recently re-established 
the Junior Civic Mayor project. The 
Junior Civic Mayor will; be the voice 
of local children, champion the 
things that matter to young people, 
be an ambassador for the town, and 
attend events with Doncaster’s Civic 
Mayor. The Junior Civic Mayor has 
responsibility for a list of events across 
Doncaster including the Christmas 
lights switch on, citizenship ceremonies, 
memorial events, and shop and building 
openings. These events give the Junior 

Civic Mayor the opportunity to share their 
perspective on issues and gain fantastic life 
skills and experiences that stand them in good 
stead for later life.

Applications were open to all children who 
would be in Year 5 as of October this year and, 
in September Alfie Turton was chosen to be 
our Junior Civic Mayor until August 2020. Alfie 
was chosen by the current Civic Mayor Cllr 
Linda Curran, and cabinet member for Children, 
Young People, and Schools, Cllr Nuala Fennelly. 
Alfie submitted a fantastic video and manifesto 
of what he would do if he were successful.

After being formally chosen as the Junior 
Civic Mayor, Alfie said;

Equality Case Study

I wanted to be Junior Civic 
Mayor because I would like 
to help children’s voices 
be heard and try to make a 
difference to people. I am 
looking forward to going to 
all the events, especially the 
Christmas Lights!”

“

17
Page 85



Pupil premium GLD is 
2% higher than national 
average for pupil premium 
(58% compared to 56%)

The gap between 
Attainment 8 average 
scores for pupil 
premium and non pupil 
premium students has 
dropped 1.8% since 
2016/17 compared to a 
national increase of 0.8%

The gap between pupil 
premium and non-pupil 
premium students getting 
a 5+ in English and maths 
has dropped by 4.8% 
since 2016/17 compared to 
a national increase of 0.2% 

Young Carers Council

LADDER Group

Learning About 
Disability, Differences, 

Equalities & Rights

Doncaster LGBTQ Youth Hub

Progress has also been made in slowing or narrowing the growing gap between disadvantaged 
and non-disadvantaged children and young people across numerous educational measures.

The gap between pupil 
premium and non-pupil 
premium Reading, 
Writing, and Maths 
scores at Key 
Stage 2 has 
reduced 
by 1.8%

Great strides have been made with regard to 
ensuring the voice of children and young people 
is at the centre of everything that we do. The 
Youth Council is continuing to play a prominent 
role in bringing the ideas and concerns of 
children and young people into the forefront.
They have played a key role in the work currently being 
done to tackle negative perceptions about knife crime.

We have also recruited 10 Young Advisors and 8 Young 
Commissioners, to ensure that young people had a voice in 
the services we provide to them and the process in which 
we design and choose services. The Young Advisors join a 
growing network across the country and have colleagues in 
Doncaster Children’s Services Trust.

The Young Commissioners play a vital 
role in supporting the commissioning 
function within the council.

Although they have only been in post a short while, our 
young advisors and young commissioners have led the 
work to shape and deliver Doncaster’s trailblazer. They 
have held interviews with senior decision makers across 
the borough and held them to account for their work. They 
have championed young people in senior meetings. They 
have ensured our new mental health provision has been 
tailored to our young people.

A concerted effort has also been made to support those 
children and young people with protected characteristics 
and ensure that their needs are met, their voices are heard, 
and that they feel safe and supported in Doncaster. 

Moving forward, the focus needs to be on expanding this high quality engagement with children and young people and ensure it is 
embedded within the day to day work of all Team Doncaster Organisations. 

Equality Overview

This has led to 
Stonewall noting 
that Doncaster 
is a leading local 
authority in 
the country for 
supporting children 
and young people 
within the LGBTQ 
community.

There has also been a 
concerted effort to celebrate 
the successes of children 
and young people in the 
borough. This year we hosted 
the first ever Civic Mayor 
Awards which championed 
the achievements of 
children and young people, 
and celebrated those who 
deserved recognition for their 
contribution to Doncaster.

(source: DfE)

18
Page 86



Page 87



When the Children and Young People’s Plan was launched in 2017 it was 
accompanied by our participation & engagement strategy. Two years on 
we are in a position to demonstrate our progress against the objectives 
of the strategy and highlight where our focus will be in the coming year.

Create mechanisms 
to raise the profile 
of young people 
and their voice
• Create Local Office of the Children’s 

Commissioner

• Support campaigns for issues that 
matter to CYP

The Local Office of the Children’s 
Commissioner has been a leading 
voice for change and improvements 
in how we engage with young people. 
They have led campaigns on issues 
that local young people care about, 
as can be seen in the work done on 
the national Make Your Mark and the 
first ever Junior Make Your Mark in the 
country.

Recruit Young 
People to positions 
of influence
• Work shadow opportunities 

• Recruit young people to develop the 
Participation Standards

• Recruit Young Advisors & Young 
Commissioners

• Stakeholder at Children’s and Young 
People’s Overview and Scrutiny 

We have actively recruited young 
people to positions of influence 
across the Council. They have played 
a leading role in commissioning, 
policy and strategy delivery, and 
young people have been given the 
opportunity to work directly with 
senior decision makers.

Listen to and support 
young people
• Ensure that the voice of 

vulnerable groups is heard

• Increased dialogue with children 
and young people that allows 
them to influence policies, provide 
feedback and hold people to 
account 

We have regular engagement with 
young people at children & families 
forum events and we make use of our 
youth councillors, young advisors, 
young commissioners and our primary 
networks to provide constant feedback. 
This drive extends to vulnerable groups 
where we engage with specialist 
groups like LADDER, the young carers’ 
forum, and SEND forums so their voices 
are heard too.

Organise activities and events 
for children and young people 
and their families 
• Deliver a robust  culture and heritage offer

• 100 things to do before you are 11

• Civic Mayor Awards 

In recent times Doncaster has taken great strides to provide 
more activities, events, and opportunities to experience and 
engage with a comprehensive heritage and culture offer.

Use all available data to inform 
decision making and engagement 
methods 
• Make decisions informed by relevant data

• Utilise digital platforms to engage with children 
and young people 

We use data to make informed decisions in all elements of 
our work, an example of this would be our targeted youth 
provision and increased use of digital communication 
methods, like social media, to reach Doncaster’s young 
people.

Successes

Participation & Engagement Strategy: 
Assessment of Progress

20
Page 88



Develop Participation Standards
• Participation Principles

A draft set of participation principles have been drawn 
up as part of our child friendly framework to ensure 
that young people are involved wherever possible in a 
meaningful way as we move forward. These will continue 
to be consulted on and strengthened.

Develop and share 
evidence-based best practice
• best practice and evidence, and 

benchmark approaches

• Plan approaches to participation 
& engagement across the partnership

There are areas of really strong and 
meaningful engagement with young people 
across organisations in Doncaster and we will 
continue to champion those areas and look to 
replicate their successes in other areas.

In Development

21
Page 89



Debt & 
Benefits

Jobs, Work, 
& Skills

Mental 
Health

Life 
Transitions

In order to better understand the impact of poverty on children 
and young people and our ability to mitigate against them, we 
commissioned a young person led investigation into it. A group of 
young people with experience of poverty were recruited as Young 
Commissioners to lead the enquiry. After some facilitated discussions 
it was agreed that the enquiry would be focused on 4 themes;

The Young Commissioners then hosted 7 sessions with senior leaders from across Doncaster’s public, private, and third sector in 
which they shared their views and experiences and quizzed the senior leaders on their roles in relation to children and young people 
experiencing poverty. The Young Commissioners then came up with recommendations to help make their services more accessible 
to children and young people experiencing poverty, alongside 3 recommendations that they felt would support other children and 
young people experiencing poverty in the borough. 

Overview

Child Poverty Commission: 
Summary of Conclusions

22
Page 90



Debt & Benefits
• Young people claiming benefits should receive 

free or discounted bus passes.

• Doncaster should do more to support families and 
young people who get into problem debt.

• To help them avoid problem debt in the first place, 
families and young people need alternatives to 
expensive loans.

• There should be good quality financial assistance 
offering quick support for those facing financial crisis.

• Benefits and money advice providers should regularly 
visit Doncaster’s schools, colleges and youth centres.

• Young people should be able to easily access advice 
and support in a way that is linked up and helps them 
with all their issues rather than just one.

• Young people should feel welcome by Jobcentre Plus 
and trust that it has their best interests at heart.

Mental Health
• All schools and colleges should ensure that no young 

person feels punished or bullied as a result of being poor.

• Counselling services should be accessible and visible in 
all secondary schools and colleges in Doncaster.

• Feedback should always be obtained from young people 
referred to mental health services, even if they are turned 
away or miss their appointment.

Young Commissioner Recommendations

Jobs, Work, & Skills
• Local apprenticeship plan should make sure that 

more young people from poor backgrounds can get 
apprenticeships and afford to stay on them.

• There should be more, and better, careers advice and 
guidance in Doncaster’s schools and colleges.

• Doncaster should have displays of careers and skills 
support available in some areas, alongside help to 
access these opportunities.

• Schools and colleges should help young people to 
experience more about the world of work and career 
possibilities by letting them meet with a wide range 
of employers and employees.

Life Transitions
• Services and support for young people in poverty 

facing difficult changes in their lives should be 
improved, including providing independent advocates 
to help young people have their voices heard.

• There should be more semi-supported accommodation, 
like the new development for care leavers in Cantley, to 
make the move to independent living smoother for young 
people in poverty or leaving care.

Child Poverty Commission: 
Recommendations

There should be an independent 
complaints service for young people, 
and young people’s feedback 
should be used to help change 
and improve services.

Doncaster Council and other local 
organisations should be taking 
more responsibility for the care 
and well-being of children and 
young people in poverty.

There should be named people 
who are responsible for making sure 
the changes in this report suggested 
by the young commissioners happen. 

23
Page 91



We have been working to build the foundations 
required to make the borough truly child-friendly. 
Our next step is to develop a framework that 
takes our ambition into every aspect of our 
children and young people’s lives.

Our 8 child friendly ambitions set 
out a broad vision for the future. 

Child Friendly Ambitions

Next Steps: 
Child Friendly Doncaster

1. Connecting Young 
 People & Doncaster
A child friendly borough ensures that children and young 
people have access to the information they need to make 
informed decisions about the opportunities and services 
available to them.

5. Ensuring a Community 
 Focused Doncaster
A child friendly borough provides as many services as possible 
within the community and empowers these communities and 
the children and young people within them to have an active 
role in shaping their services and their future.

6. Promoting a Strong 
 Education & Skills System
A child friendly borough ensures that the education 
children and young people receive is effective and 
supports their development through into adulthood and 
employment with a focus on skills and aspiration.

2. Building an Inclusive Doncaster
A child friendly borough is thoroughly inclusive and takes 
steps to ensure that all children and young people feel 
like welcome and active members of communities with 
equal access to opportunities and services, particularly 
disadvantaged young people.

7. Delivering a Quality 
 of Place in Doncaster
A child friendly borough promotes sustainability, safety 
and makes sure that children and young people can be 
proud of where they come from.

3. Creating a Happy 
 & Healthy Doncaster
A child friendly borough is one that promotes and 
facilitates the maintenance of good physical and 
mental wellbeing and ensures that young people are 
able to access services supporting those aims effectively.

8. Delivering High Quality Services
A child friendly borough ensures that all of the supportive 
services that young people may need or wish to access are 
joined up, tailored to their needs, and highly effective.

4. Providing Opportunities for  
 Participation & Engagement
A child friendly borough ensures that children and 
young people have the opportunity to access activities 
and events across the spectrum of sports, arts, academic, 
and community groups regardless of their location.

24
Page 92



To ensure that we deliver those ambitions in a child 
friendly way we have developed the participation 
principles. Over the next 12 months we will be refining 
these concepts in consultation with children and young 
people and key organisations across Doncaster.

There are 5 principles each with a scale 
that demonstrates level of effectiveness;

In Development

There is an 
aspiration to 
engage children 
and young people 
in a service, 
initiative or 
organisation but 
no clear offer in 
place

Informed

There is a clear 
consideration for 
children and young 
people in how 
services, initiatives, 
or events are 
communicated Consulted/Involved

Children and 
young people are 
able to share their 
opinions on services, 
initiatives, events, or 
organisations and be 
involved Young Person Led

Children and 
young people are 
decision makers 
in shaping and 
delivering services, 
initiatives, or 
events

Inform
Children & young people 
are able to make informed 
decisions with information 
tailored to them.

Involve
Children & young people 
are encouraged to be 
involved and share their 
opinions on services.

Include
Children & young people 
from all backgrounds and 
circumstances are made to 
feel welcome and included.

Inspire
Children & young people 
are given opportunities to 
develop skills, experience, 
and to participate.

Impact
Children & young 
people shape services 
and initiatives and are told 
about their impact on them.

Participation Principles

25
Page 93



Youth Council
Working to ensure young people have 
a say on decisions made in Doncaster.

Primary Voice
Enabling local children to have 
their voices heard.

Young Commissioners
Ensuring commissioned services meet 
the needs of children and young people 
in Doncaster.

Junior Civic Mayor
Working to ensure young people have 
a say on decisions made in Doncaster.

SEND Forum
Ensuring the voices of young people with 
special needs and disabilities are listened to.

LGBTQ+ Youth
Raising awareness and supporting 
LGBTQ+ young people across Doncaster.

Young Advisors
Shaping and improving services across 
Doncaster for children and young people.

26
Page 94



Making Doncaster the most 
child friendly borough in the country.

DONCASTER
YOUR VOICE

27
Page 95



Team Doncaster,
Floor 1, Civic Office, 

Waterdale, Doncaster,
South Yorkshire, DN1 3BU

www.teamdoncaster.org.uk

1

THE DONCASTER  
COMPLEX LIVES 
ALLIANCE
O U R  V I S I O N  F O R  A  W H O L E  S Y S T E M , 
A C C O U N TA B L E  C A R E  PA R T N E R S H I P  M O D E L  
T O  S U P P O R T  P E O P L E  W I T H  C O M P L E X  L I V E S

Team Doncaster

D R A F T  F O R  D I S C U S S I O N

Page 96


	Agenda
	6 Minutes of the Meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board held on 7th November 2019. (Attached)
	7 Doncaster Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2018/19.
	Item 7 - Exec Summary v2

	8 Report from Health and Wellbeing Board Steering Group and Forward Plan
	Item 8 - steering group report HWB Jan 2020
	Item 8 - APP A - HWBB forward plan January 2020

	9 Update on Get Doncaster Moving - A Whole Systems Approach to Addressing Inactivity
	Item 9 - GDM Annual Report Slide Version 06.01.2020

	10 Well Doncaster Update
	Item 10 - Well Doncaster-HWB

	11 Children and Young People's Plan Impact Report
	Item 11 - CYPP Impact Report 2019


